### Supplementary appendix – BATS second analysis

Table of contents:

The Best Available Treatment Study (BATS) Consortium	3-11
Supplementary methods	12-22
Introduction and changes from previous analysis	
Patient recruitment	
Data preparation and non-outcome definitions	
Data entry and processing	
Inclusion and exclusion criteria	12
Inclusions for weighted analysis	
Treatment definitions	
Missing data, interpolation, and imputation	
Merging consecutive admissions	
Assessing for misalignment	
Laboratory values	14
Definition of clinical severity scale	14
Demographics & baseline clinical data	15
Patients meeting WHO MIS-C criteria and KD criteria	
Outcome definitions	15
Primary outcomes	15
Secondary outcomes	16
Analysis	18
Sample-size estimations	10
Confounding	10
Models for treatment effect estimation	
Confounding with matched models	20
Correction for multiple hypothesis testing	20
Subgroup sensitivity and other analyses	20
Baseline comparisons of treatment groups	
Supplementary tables	
Table S1: Details of additional treatments given by primary treatment group	
Table S2: Unabridged demographic information clinical features and blood results for all patients	included
in the analysis	74
Table S3: Demographic information, clinical features, and blood results for all patients included in t	
analysis and subgrouns meeting specific criteria	26
Table S4: Distribution of patients meeting WHO criteria subdivided by Kawasaki Disease status, age	and
primary treatment	
Table S5A: Details for first primary outcome – inotropes/ventilation from day 2 or death	29
Table S5B: Details for second primary outcome – Time-to-improvement in ordinal scale of clinical s	everity 29
Table S5C: Baw and weighted dichotomous secondary outcomes by primary treatment group	30
Table S5D: Raw and weighted outcomes for subgroup and sensitivity analyses of first primary outcomes f	ome by
primary treatment group	
Table S5E: Additional details for subgroup and sensitivity analyses of second primary outcome by p	orimary
treatment group	
Table S6A: Timing of coronary artery aneurysms by primary treatment group	
Table S6B: Coronary artery aneurysm detection and resolution at any time by primary treatment g	roup 36
Table S6C: Coronary artery aneurysm resolution at 6-weeks from treatment initiation by primary tr	eatment
Table S6D: Coronary artery aneurysm resolution at 12-weeks from treatment initiation by primary group	treatment
Table S6E: Coronary artery aneurysm incidence and resolution in patients receiving primary treatm	ient with
giuloloi illoius aloiic Table 57A: Maximum coronany artony angurusma secores by primary treatment group	۵۵ ۵۰
Table S7P. Maximum coronany artery aneurysmic scores by primary treatment group	
rable 576. Maximum coronary artery aneurysm 2-scores by primary treatment group and age	

Table S8: Treatment related complications	
Table S9A: Steroid drugs and doses for primary treatment	
Table S9B: IVIG doses for primary treatment	
Table S10: Coefficients for covariate-balancing propensity score multinomial model – Primary	outcome:
inotropes/ventilation day 2+ or death	
Table S11: Coefficients for covariate-balancing propensity score multinomial model – Primary	outcome:
Time-to-improvement in clinical severity scale	
Table S12: Coefficients for covariate-balancing propensity score multinomial model – Subgrou	up meeting
WHO MIS-C Chieffa: motropes/ventilation day 2+ of death	
WHO MIS C Criteria: Time to improvement in clinical soverity scale	1p meeting
Table \$14: Numbers of patients consoring for time to improvement primary outcome analysi	
Table S15: Summary of missing data for imputed /internolated variables	s40 ۸٦
Supplementary figures	
Supplemental y figures.	atmont Study
and recruiting at least one nationt	
Figure S2A: Number of enrolment sites registered per country	
Figure S2R. Number of patients enrolled in BATS per country	4949 ۸۹
Figure S2C: Number of patients enrolled in BATS by site in each country	
Figure S3: BATS registrations by month between May 2020 and April 2022	
Figure S4: Comparison of blood results across treatment groups at day $0$ (baseline)	52
Figure S5: Comparison of baseline blood results across treatment groups between day 0 and	dav 2 53
Figure S6A: Proportion of patients on inotropes or ventilated at baseline across treatment arr	ns at day 0 55
Figure S6B: Proportion of patients on inotropes or ventilated at baseline across treatment gro	pups between
day 0 and day 2	
Figure S7: Missing components in patients with all but one component of the WHO MIS-C crit	eria56
Figure S8: Proportion of patients with clinical features of Kawasaki disease across primary tre	atment groups
up to treatment initiation	
Figure S9: Forest plots summarizing point estimates and 95% confidence intervals for second	ary outcomes,
including planned and post-hoc additional analyses	
Figure S10: Forest plot summarizing point estimates and 95% confidence intervals for primary	y and
secondary outcomes for planned secondary analysis of IVIG+G versus glucocorticoids alone	59
Figure S11: Inverse probability weight distributions and covariate balance plots for first prima	ry outcome:
Inotropes/ventilation from day 2 onwards or death	60
Figure S12: Inverse probability weight distributions and covariate balance plots, second prima	ary outcome:
Time-to-improvement of ordinal scale of clinical severity	61
Figure S13: Change in other blood results over time from treatment initiation	62
Figure S14: Percentage of the CRP peak value by admission day relative to treatment initiatio	n for three
main primary treatments	63
Figure S15A: Forest plots for additional post-hoc sensitivity analyses for first primary outcome	e64
Figure S15B: Forest plots for additional post-hoc sensitivity analyses for second primary outco	ome 65
Figure S16: Covariate balance plots for matched analysis of first and second primary outcome	s 66
Figure S17: Proportion of patients in each primary treatment group by region	67
Appendices	
Appendix A – Targeted coronary aneurysm questionnaire	68
Appendix B – Sample-size calculations	69
Appendix C – List of R packages used for analysis	70
Appendix D – Key fields required for full analysis	71
References	72-73

### The Best Available Treatment Study (BATS) Consortium

BATS consortium (https://bestavailabletreatmentstudy.co.uk) is composed, in alphabetical order for each country, by:

#### Study management group:

Study Coordinator: Michael Levin<sup>1</sup>

**Co-investigators:** Claire Broderick<sup>1</sup>, Michael Carter<sup>5</sup>, Samuel Channon-Wells<sup>1</sup>, Aubrey Cunnington<sup>1</sup>, Giselle D'Souza<sup>1</sup>, Jethro Herberg<sup>1</sup>, Myrsini Kaforou<sup>1</sup>, Ilana Keren<sup>1</sup>, Andrew McArdle<sup>1</sup>, Ruud Nijman<sup>1</sup>, Harsita Patel<sup>1</sup>, Padmanabhan Ramnarayan<sup>6</sup>, Eleanor Seaby<sup>1</sup>, Priyen Shah<sup>1</sup>, Ekaterina Pazukhina<sup>4</sup>, Ortensia Vito<sup>1</sup>, Elizabeth Whittaker<sup>1</sup>, Clare Wilson<sup>1</sup>

**Statisticians:** Oleg Blyuss<sup>2</sup>, Samuel Channon-Wells<sup>1</sup>, Clive Hoggart<sup>3</sup>, Myrsini Kaforou<sup>1</sup>, Andrew McArdle<sup>1</sup>

Data management: Tisham De<sup>1</sup>, Ortensia Vito<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup> Department of Infectious Disease, Faculty of Medicine, Imperial College London, London, SW7 2AZ, United Kingdom

<sup>2</sup> Wolfson Institute of Population Health, Queen Mary University of London, London, United Kingdom.

<sup>3</sup> Department of Genetics and Genomic Sciences, Icahn School of Medicine at Mount Sinai, New York

<sup>4</sup> Department of Pediatrics and Pediatric Infectious Diseases, Institute of Child's Health, Sechenov First Moscow State Medical University (Sechenov University), Moscow, Russia

<sup>5</sup> Department of Women and Children's Health, School of Life Course Sciences, King's College London, St Thomas' Hospital, SE1 7EH, London, UK

<sup>6</sup> Great Ormond Street Hospital for Children NHS Foundation Trust, London, WC1N 3JH, UK

#### International Advisory Board:

Daniel Munblit<sup>1</sup>, Adriana Tremoulet<sup>2</sup>, Rolando Ulloa-Gutierrez<sup>3,4,5</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Pediatrics and Pediatric Infectious Diseases, Institute of Child's Health, Sechenov First Moscow State Medical University (Sechenov University), Moscow, Russia

<sup>2</sup>Department of Pediatrics, Rady Children's Hospital San Diego/University of California San Diego, 9500 Gilman Way MC 0641 La Jolla CA 92093, USA

<sup>3</sup>Servicio de Infectología Pediátrica, Hospital Nacional de Niños "Dr. Carlos Sáenz Herrera", Caja Costarricense de Seguro Social (CCSS), San José, Costa Rica

<sup>4</sup> Instituto de Investigación en Ciencias Médicas UCIMED (IICIMED), San José, Costa Rica

<sup>5</sup> Cátedra de Pediatría, Facultad de Medicina, Universidad de Ciencias Médicas (UCIMED), San José, Costa Rica

#### **ALGERIA**

Mohamed Chouli<sup>1,2</sup>, Nacera Hamadouche<sup>1,2</sup>, Mohamed Samir Ladj<sup>1,2</sup>

<sup>1</sup> Pediatric Department, Djillali Belkhenchir University Hospital, Algiers, Algeria

<sup>2</sup> Faculty of Medicine, Algiers University, Algiers, Algeria

#### **ARGENTINA**

Jorge Agrimbau Vázquez<sup>1</sup>, Rodrigo Carmona<sup>2</sup>, Adrian Gustavo Collia<sup>6</sup>, Alejandro Ellis<sup>7</sup>, Diego Natta<sup>5</sup>, Laura Pérez<sup>3</sup>, Mayra Rubiños<sup>4</sup>, Natalia Veliz<sup>4</sup>, Silvana Yori<sup>8</sup>

<sup>1</sup> Department of Pediatrics, Servicio de Mediano Riesgo, Hospital de Pediatría "Prof. Dr. Juan P. Garrahan", Buenos Aires, Argentina

<sup>2</sup> Pediatric Critical Care Unit, Hospital de Pediatría "Prof. Dr. Juan P. Garrahan", Buenos Aires, Argentina

<sup>3</sup> Department of Pediatrics, Emergency Medicine, Hospital de Pediatría "Prof. Dr. Juan P. Garrahan", Buenos Aires, Argentina

<sup>4</sup> Department of Pediatrics, Internal Medicine, Hospital de Pediatría "Prof. Dr. Juan P. Garrahan", Buenos Aires, Argentina

<sup>5</sup> Department of Pediatrics, Intensive Care Unit, Hospital Interzonal Especializado Materno Infantil Don Victorio Tetamanti, Mar Del Plata, Argentina

<sup>6</sup> Department of Pediatrics, Cardiology, Sanatorio Mater Dei, Buenos Aires, Argentina

<sup>7</sup> Pediatric Service, Sanatorio Mater Dei, Buenos Aires, Argentina

<sup>8</sup> Pediatrician. "Fundación Garrahan" Fellow, Buenos Aires, Argentina

#### AUSTRALIA

Philip N. Britton<sup>1,2</sup>, David P. Burgner<sup>5,6</sup>, Emma Carey<sup>1,3</sup>, Nigel W. Crawford<sup>1,4,5</sup>, Hayley Giuliano<sup>1,4</sup>, Alissa McMinn<sup>1,4</sup>, Shirley Wong<sup>1,2</sup>, Nicholas Wood<sup>1,3</sup>

<sup>1</sup> Pediatric Active Enhanced Disease Surveillance (PAEDS) network, Australia

<sup>2</sup> Department of Infectious Diseases and Microbiology, the Children's Hospital at Westmead, Sydney, Australia

<sup>3</sup> National Center for Immunization Research and Surveillance, Westmead, Sydney, Australia

<sup>4</sup> SAEFVIC, Murdoch Children's Research Institute, Melbourne, Australia

- <sup>5</sup> Department of General Medicine, The Royal Children's Hospital, Melbourne, Australia
- <sup>6</sup> Inflammatory Origins Group, Murdoch Children's Research Institute, Melbourne, Australia

#### **AUSTRIA**

Wolfgang Holter<sup>1</sup>, Matthias Krainz<sup>1</sup>, Raphael Ulreich<sup>2</sup>, Christoph Zurl<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup> St. Anna Children's Hospital, Medical University of Vienna, Vienna, Austria

<sup>2</sup> Department of Pediatrics, Pediatric Intensive Care Unit, Medical University Graz, Austria

#### **BELGIUM**

Joke Dehoorne<sup>1</sup>, Filomeen Haerynck<sup>2,3</sup>, Levi Hoste<sup>2,3</sup>, Petra Schelstraete<sup>3</sup>, Kristof Vandekerckhove<sup>4</sup>, Jef Willems<sup>5</sup>

<sup>1</sup> Department of Pediatric Nephrology and Rheumatology, Ghent University Hospital, Ghent, Belgium

<sup>2</sup> Primary Immunodeficiency Research Lab, Center for Primary Immunodeficiency Ghent, Jeffrey Modell

Diagnosis and Research Center, Ghent University Hospital, Ghent, Belgium

<sup>3</sup> Department of Pediatric Pulmonology, Infectious Diseases and Immunology, Ghent University Hospital, Ghent, Belgium

<sup>4</sup> Department of Pediatric Cardiology, Ghent University Hospital, Ghent, Belgium

<sup>5</sup> Pediatric Intensive Care Unit, Ghent University Hospital, Ghent, Belgium

#### BRAZIL

Camila Giuliana Almeida Farias<sup>6</sup>, Flávia Jacqueline Almeida<sup>5,6</sup>, Izabel Alves Leal<sup>4</sup>, André Ricardo Araujo da Silva<sup>2</sup>, Anna Esther Araujo e Silva<sup>1</sup>, Sabrina T. A. Barreiro<sup>1</sup>, Daniella Gregória Bomfim Prado da Silva<sup>6</sup>, Maria Celia Cervi<sup>3</sup>, Mirian Viviane dos Santos Naja Cardoso<sup>2</sup>, Cristiane Henriques Teixeira<sup>4</sup>, Daniel Jarovsky<sup>5,6</sup>, Julienne Martins Araujo<sup>1</sup>, Eitan Naaman Berezin<sup>5</sup>, Marco Aurélio Palazzi Sáfadi<sup>5,6</sup>, Rolando Andres Paternina-de la Ossa<sup>3</sup>, Cristina Souza Vieira<sup>4</sup>

<sup>1</sup> Department of Pediatrics, Getulio Vargas Filho Hospital, Niteroi, RJ, Brazil

<sup>2</sup> Materno Infantil Department, Federal Fluminense University, Brazil

<sup>3</sup> Faculdade de Medicina de Ribeirão Preto, Universidad de São Paolo, São Paolo, Brazil

<sup>4</sup> Prontobaby Group, Rio de Janeiro, Brazil

<sup>5</sup> Department of Pediatric Infectious Diseases, Santa Casa de São Paulo Hospital, São Paulo, Brazil

<sup>6</sup> Division of Pediatric Infectious Diseases, Sabará Hospital, São Paulo, Brazil

#### **BULGARIA**

Anna Dimitrova<sup>1</sup>, Margarita Ganeva<sup>1</sup>, Stefan Stefanov<sup>1</sup>, Albena Telcharova-Mihaylovska<sup>1</sup> <sup>1</sup> Department of pediatric rheumatology, University Children's Hospital, Medical University Sofia, Bulgaria

#### **CANADA**

Catherine M. Biggs<sup>1</sup>, Alison Lopez<sup>3</sup>, Rosie Scuccimarri<sup>2</sup>, Ryan Tan<sup>1</sup>, Sam Wasserman<sup>4</sup>, Davinia Withington<sup>2,4</sup>

<sup>1</sup> Department of Pediatrics, BC Children's Hospital, The University of British Columbia, Vancouver, BC, Canada <sup>2</sup> Department of Pediatrics, Montreal Children's Hospital, McGill University Health Sciences Center, Montreal,

Quebec H4A 3J1, Canada

<sup>3</sup> Division of Infectious Diseases, BC Children's Hospital, Vancouver, BC, Canada

<sup>4</sup> Department of Anesthesia, Montreal Children's Hospital, McGill University Health Sciences Center, Montreal, Quebec H4A 3J1, Canada

#### <u>CHILE</u>

Camila Ampuero<sup>1</sup>, Javiera Aravena<sup>2</sup>, Raul Bustos B<sup>3,9</sup>, Daniel Casanova<sup>4</sup>, Pablo Cruces<sup>4,5,6</sup>, Franco Diaz<sup>4,6,7</sup>, Tamara García-Salum<sup>2,10</sup>, Loreto Godoy<sup>8</sup>, Rafael A. Medina<sup>2,10</sup>, Gonzalo Valenzuela Galaz<sup>2,10</sup>

<sup>1</sup> Unidad de Paciente Crítico, Hospital Clínico La Florida, Santiago, Chile

<sup>2</sup> Department of Pediatric Infectious Diseases and Immunology, Pontifical Catholic University of Chile, Marcoleta 391, Santiago, Chile

<sup>3</sup> Pediatric Intensive Care, Clínica Sanatorio Alemán, Concepción, Chile

<sup>4</sup> Unidad de Paciente Crítico Pediátrico, Hospital de El Carmen de Maipú, Santiago, Chile

<sup>5</sup> Centro de Investigación de Medicina Veterinaria, Escuela de Medicina Veterinaria, Facultad de Ciencias de la Vida, Universidad Andres Bello, Santiago, Chile

<sup>6</sup> LARed Network, Santiago, Chile

<sup>7</sup> Escuela de Medicina, Universidad Finis Terrae, Santiago, Chile

<sup>8</sup> Unidad de Paciente Crítico Pediátrico (UPCP), Complejo Asistencial Dr. Sotero del Río, Santiago, Chile
<sup>9</sup> Facultad de Medicina y Ciencia, Universidad San Sebastian, Chile

<sup>10</sup> Advanced Interdisciplinary Rehabilitation Register (AIRR) – COVID-19 Working Group, Faculty of Medicine,

Pontificia Universidad Católica de Chile, Santiago, Chile

#### **COLOMBIA**

Germán Camacho-Moreno<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup> HOMI, Fundación Hospital pediátrico la Misericordia, Universidad Nacional de Colombia, Bogotá, Colombia

#### **COSTA RICA**

María L. Avila-Aguero<sup>1,4,5</sup>, Helena Brenes-Chacón<sup>1</sup>, Kattia Camacho-Badilla<sup>1</sup>, Gabriela Ivankovich Escoto<sup>2</sup>, Gabriela Naranjo-Zuniga<sup>1</sup>, Alejandra Soriano-Fallas<sup>1</sup>, Rolando Ulloa-Gutierrez<sup>1,5,6</sup>, Adriana Yock-Corrales<sup>3</sup>

<sup>1</sup> Servicio de Infectología Pediátrica, Hospital Nacional de Niños "Dr. Carlos Sáenz Herrera", Caja Costarricense de Seguro Social (CCSS), San José, Costa Rica

<sup>2</sup> Servicio de Immunología y Reumatología Pediátrica, Hospital Nacional de Niños "Dr. Carlos Sáenz Herrera", Caja Costarricense de Seguro Social (CCSS), San José, Costa Rica

<sup>3</sup> Servicio de Emergencias Pediátricas, Hospital Nacional de Niños "Dr. Carlos Sáenz Herrera", Caja Costarricense de Seguro Social (CCSS), San José, Costa Rica

<sup>4</sup> Center for Infectious Disease Modeling and Analysis (CIDMA), Yale University New Haven, Haven, CT, USA

<sup>5</sup> Instituto de Investigación en Ciencias Médicas UCIMED (IICIMED), San José, Costa Rica

<sup>6</sup> Cátedra de Pediatría, Facultad de Medicina, Universidad de Ciencias Médicas (UCIMED), San José, Costa Rica

#### <u>EGYPT</u>

Maysa Abbas Amer<sup>2</sup>, Yasmine Abdelmeguid<sup>3</sup>, Yomna H. H. Z. Ahmed<sup>2</sup>, Adham Badib<sup>1</sup>, Karim Badreldin<sup>1</sup>, Yara Elkhashab<sup>1</sup>, Hassan Heshmat<sup>1</sup>, Amna Hussein Mohamed Hussein<sup>2</sup>, Sandra Ibrahim<sup>2</sup>, Walaa Shoman<sup>3</sup>, Radwa M Yakout<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup> Neonatal Intensive Care Unit, Smouha International Hospital, Alexandria, Egypt

<sup>2</sup> Alexandria Pediatric Center, Alexandria, Egypt

<sup>3</sup> Department of Pediatrics, Faculty of Medicine, Alexandria University, Alexandria, Egypt

#### **FINLAND**

Santtu Heinonen<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup> New Children's Hospital, Pediatric Research Center, University of Helsinki, and Helsinki University Hospital, 00029 HUS, Helsinki, Finland

#### FRANCE

François Angoulvant<sup>1,2</sup>, Alexandre Belot<sup>3</sup>, Naïm Ouldali<sup>4,5,6</sup>

<sup>1</sup> Assistance Publique–Hôpitaux de Paris, Pediatric Emergency Department, Necker-Enfants Malades University Hospital, Université de Paris, Paris, France

<sup>2</sup> INSERM, Center de Recherche des Cordeliers, UMRS 1138, Sorbonne Université, Université de Paris, Paris, France

<sup>3</sup> Hospices Civils de Lyon, Pediatric Nephrology, Rheumatology, Dermatology, Hopital Femme, Mère Enfant, Center International de Recherche en Infectiologie/INSERM U1111, Bron, France  <sup>4</sup> Assistance Publique–Hôpitaux de Paris, Department of General Pediatrics, Pediatric Infectious Disease and Internal Medicine, Robert Debré University Hospital, Université de Paris, Paris, France
 <sup>5</sup> ACTIV, Association Clinique et Thérapeutique Infantile du Val-de-Marne, Créteil, France

<sup>6</sup> Université de Paris, INSERM UMR 1123, ECEVE, Paris, France

#### **GERMANY**

Florian Beske<sup>1</sup>, Axel Heep<sup>1</sup>, Katja Masjosthusmann<sup>2</sup>, Karl Reiter<sup>3</sup>, Ingeborg van den Heuvel<sup>2</sup>, Ulrich von Both<sup>3</sup>

<sup>1</sup> Department of Pediatrics, University Hospital Oldenburg, Rahel-Straus-Str. 10, 26133 Oldenburg, Germany

<sup>2</sup> University Hospital Muenster, Department of General Pediatrics, Albert-Schweizer-Campus A1, 48149 Muenster, Germany

<sup>3</sup> University Hospital, Ludwig Maximilians University (LMU) Munich, Hauner Children's Hospital, Germany

#### **GREECE**

Aikaterini Agrafiotou<sup>1</sup>, Charalampos Antachopoulos<sup>2</sup>, Konstantina Charisi<sup>2</sup>, Irini Eleftheriou<sup>3</sup>, Evangelia Farmaki<sup>4</sup>, Lampros Fotis<sup>1,5,6</sup>, Dimitrios Kafetzis<sup>6</sup>, Patra Koletsi<sup>7</sup>, Katerina Kourtesi<sup>5</sup>, Stavroula Lampidi<sup>3</sup>, Theodota Liakopoulou<sup>1</sup>, Despoina Maritsi<sup>3</sup>, Elisa Michailidou<sup>2</sup>, Maria Milioudi<sup>2</sup>, Ioanna Mparmpounaki<sup>1</sup>, Eleni Papadimitriou<sup>2,4</sup>, Vassiliki Papaevangelou<sup>5</sup>, Emmanuel Roilides<sup>2</sup>, Olga Tsiatsiou<sup>2</sup>, Georgios Tsolas<sup>6</sup>, Maria Tsolia<sup>3</sup>, Petrina Vantsi<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup> IASO Children's Hospital, Athens, Greece

<sup>2</sup> Infectious Diseases Unit, 3rd Department of Pediatrics, School of Medicine, Faculty of Health Sciences,

Aristotle University, Hippokration General Hospital, Thessaloniki, Greece

<sup>3</sup> Second Department of Pediatrics, "P.& A. Kyriakou" Children's Hospital, Athens Medical School, National and Kapodistrian University of Athens, Greece

<sup>4</sup> First Dept of Pediatrics, Hippokratio Hospital of Thessaloniki, Aristotle of Thessaloniki, Greece

<sup>5</sup> ATTIKON General Hospital, Department of Pediatrics, National and Kapodsitrian University of Athens, Greece

<sup>6</sup> Metropolitan General Hospital, Piraeus, Greece

<sup>7</sup> Pediatrics, Penteli Children's Hospital, Penteli, Greece

#### HONDURAS

Linda Yajeira Banegas Pineda<sup>1</sup>, Karla Leversia Borjas Aguilar<sup>2</sup>, Edwin Mauricio Cantillano Quintero<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup> PICU, Department of Pediatric, North Hospital, IHSS, San Pedro Sula, Honduras

<sup>2</sup> Pediatric Immunology Service, Hospital María, Especialidades Pediátricas, Tegucigalpa, Honduras

#### HONG KONG

Patrick Ip<sup>1</sup>, Mike Yat Wah Kwan<sup>2</sup>, Janette Kwok<sup>4</sup>, Yu Lung Lau<sup>1</sup>, Kelvin To<sup>3</sup>, Joshua Sung Chih Wong<sup>2</sup> <sup>1</sup> Department of Pediatrics and Adolescent Medicine, Li Ka Shing Faculty of Medicine, The University of Hong Kong, Hong Kong SAR, China

<sup>2</sup> Pediatric Infectious Disease Unit, Hong Kong Hospital Authority Infectious Disease Center, Princess Margaret Hospital, Hong Kong SAR, China

<sup>3</sup> Department of Microbiology, Li Ka Shing Faculty of Medicine, The University of Hong Kong, Hong Kong SAR, China

<sup>4</sup> Department of Transplant and Immunogenetics, Queen Mary Hospital, Hong Kong SAR, China

#### HUNGARY

Mate David<sup>1</sup>, David Farkas<sup>1</sup>, Szofia Kalcakosz<sup>1</sup>, Klaudia Szekeres<sup>1</sup>, Borbala Zsigmond<sup>1</sup> <sup>1</sup> General Pediatrics, Heim Pal Children Hospital, ulloi ut 86. Budapest 1089, Hungary

#### <u>INDIA</u>

Nadeem Aslam<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup> Lotus Hospital for Women and Children, Pediatric ICU, Hyderabad, India

#### **ISRAEL**

Anthony Luder<sup>1</sup> <sup>1</sup> Ziv Medical Center, Safed, Israel

#### <u>ITALY</u>

Laura Andreozzi<sup>5</sup>, Francesco Bianco<sup>1</sup>, Valentina Bucciarelli<sup>1</sup>, Danilo Buonsenso<sup>2</sup>, Rolando Cimaz<sup>3</sup>, Maia De Luca<sup>4</sup>, Rosa Maria Dellepiane<sup>3</sup>, Marianna Fabi<sup>5</sup>, Emanuele Filice<sup>11</sup>, Marcello Lanari<sup>5</sup>, Andrea Lo Vecchio<sup>10</sup>, Maria Vincenza Mastrolia<sup>6</sup>, Angela Mauro<sup>7</sup>, Angelo Mazza<sup>8</sup>, Mario Virgilio Papa<sup>9</sup>, Lorenza Romani<sup>4</sup>, Sara Maria Scarano<sup>10</sup>, Gabriele Simonini<sup>6</sup>, Vincenzo Tipo<sup>7</sup>, Lucio Verdoni<sup>8</sup> <sup>1</sup> Department of Pediatric and Congenital Cardiology and Cardiac Surgery, Azienda Ospedaliero-Universitaria

<sup>1</sup> Department of Pediatric and Congenital Cardiology and Cardiac Surgery, Azienda Ospedaliero-Universitaria "Ospedali Riuniti", Ancona, Italy

<sup>2</sup> Department of Woman and Child Health and Public Health, Fondazione Policlinico Universitario A. Gemelli IRCCS, Rome, Italy

<sup>3</sup> University of Milano, Italy

<sup>4</sup> Immunology and Infectious Diseases Unit, Academic Department of Pediatrics, Bambino Gesù Children's Hospital, IRCCS, Piazza Sant'Onofrio, 4, 00165 Rome, Italy

<sup>5</sup> Division of Pediatric Emergency, IRCCS Azienda Ospedaliero-Universitaria di Bologna, Bologna, Italy

<sup>6</sup> Rheumatology Unit, Meyer Children's Hospital, University of Florence, Florence, Italy

<sup>7</sup> Emergency Department, COVID Unit, Santobono-Pausilipon Children's Hospital, Italy

<sup>8</sup> Pediatric General Department, ASST Papa Giovanni XXIII, Bergamo, Italy

<sup>9</sup> Department of Medical and Surgical Sciences, University of Padova, Padua, Italy

<sup>10</sup> Department of Translational Medical Sciences - Section of Pediatrics / Pediatric Infectious Diseases Unit, University of Naples Federico II, Naples, Italy

<sup>11</sup> Specialty School of Pediatrics, Alma Mater Studiorum, University of Bologna, Bologna, Italy

#### <u>KENYA</u>

Anne-Marie Macharia<sup>4</sup>, Grace Musiime<sup>1</sup>, Bhupi Reel<sup>1,5</sup>, Frederick Wangai<sup>2,3</sup>

- <sup>1</sup> Pediatric Intensive Care Unit, MP Shah Hospital, Nairobi, Kenya
- <sup>2</sup> Department of Clinical Medicine and Therapeutics, University of Nairobi, Nairobi, Kenya
- <sup>3</sup> Department of Medicine, Avenue Hospital Parklands, Nairobi, Kenya
- <sup>4</sup> Department of Pediatrics, Kenyatta National Hospital, Nairobi, Kenya

<sup>5</sup> Department of Pediatrics, University of Nairobi, Nairobi, Kenya

#### <u>MALTA</u>

David Pace<sup>1</sup>, Paul Torpiano<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup> Department of Pediatric and Adolescent Health, Mater Dei Hospital, Malta

#### **MEXICO**

Nancy Anaya-Enriquez<sup>2</sup>, Juan Manuel Carreon-Guerrero<sup>2</sup>, Enrique Chacon-Cruz<sup>4</sup>, Mariana Cheung López<sup>1</sup>, Enrique Faugier Fuentes<sup>3</sup>, Marisol Fonseca Flores<sup>1</sup>, Miguel García-Domínguez<sup>2</sup>, Ana Luisa Giron Vargas<sup>1</sup>, Ivan Lopez-Delgado<sup>4</sup>, Liliana Lopez Hernández<sup>1</sup>, Hector F. Menchaca Aguayo<sup>3</sup>, Jesus Gilberto Montaño-Duron<sup>4</sup>, Giordano Pérez-Gaxiola<sup>2</sup>, Pamela Ramos Tiñini<sup>3</sup>, Edgardo Tostado-Morales<sup>2</sup>, Julio Valadez<sup>3</sup>

<sup>1</sup> Department of Pediatric Critical Care, Centro Medico Nacional Siglo XXI, Mexico City, Mexico

<sup>2</sup> Department of Allergy and Immunology, Hospital Pediatrico de Sinaloa, Culiacan, Mexico

<sup>3</sup> Department of Pediatric Rheumatology, Hospital Infantil de Mexico Federico Gomez, Mexico City, Mexico

<sup>4</sup> Department of Pediatrics, Hospital General Tijuana, Tijuana, Mexico

#### NORWAY

Christopher Inchley<sup>3</sup>, Sjur Klevberg<sup>1</sup>, Per Kristian Knudsen<sup>2</sup>, Per Helge Måseide<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup> Children Department, Drammen Hospital, Vestre Viken Hospital Trust, Norway

<sup>2</sup> Department of Pediatric Medicine, Oslo University Hospital, PB 4956 Nydalen, 0424 Oslo, Norway

<sup>3</sup> Department of Pediatric and Adolescent Medicine, Akershus University Hospital, Nordbyhagen, Norway

#### PANAMA

Jose Manuel Carrera<sup>1</sup>, Elizabeth Castaño<sup>2</sup>, Carlos Alberto Daza Timana<sup>1</sup>, Tirza De Leon<sup>1</sup>, Dora Estripeaut<sup>3</sup>, Jacqueline Levy<sup>2</sup>, Ximena Norero<sup>4</sup>, Javier Record<sup>1</sup>, Magda Rojas-Bonilla<sup>5</sup>, Mayra Wong<sup>6</sup> <sup>1</sup> Department of Infectious Disease, Hospital Materno Infantil José Domingo De Obaldía, David, Chiriquí, Panamá

<sup>2</sup> Pediatric Infectious Diseases Service, Hospital del Niño Dr. José Renán Esquivel, Panamá City, Panamá

<sup>3</sup> Pediatric Infectious Diseases, Hospital Paitilla, Panamá, Panamá and Sistema Nacional de Investigación (SNI), SENACYT, Panamá

<sup>4</sup> Pacifica Salud, Pediatric Infectious diseases, Panama City, Panama

<sup>5</sup> Pediatrics Infectious Diseases Service, Hospital de Especialidades Pediatricas, Panama City, Panama

<sup>6</sup> Department of Pediatrics, Hospital de Especialidades Pediatricas, Panama City, Panama

#### PARAGUAY

Ricardo Iramain1

<sup>1</sup> Emergency Department, Hospital Clinicas-National University of Asuncion, Paraguay

#### <u>PERU</u>

Roger Hernandez<sup>1,2</sup>, Gian Huamán<sup>1,2</sup>, Manuel Munaico<sup>1,2</sup>, Carlos Peralta<sup>1,2</sup>, Diego Seminario<sup>1,2</sup>, Elmer Hans Zapata Yarlequé<sup>1,2</sup>

<sup>1</sup> Departamento de pediatría, Hospital Cayetano Heredia, Lima, Perú

<sup>2</sup> Servicio de pediatría, Clínica San Felipe, Lima, Perú

#### POLAND

Justyna Gadzinska<sup>1</sup>, Kamila Ludwikowska<sup>2</sup>, Joanna Mandziuk<sup>1</sup>, Magdalena Okarska-Napierała<sup>1</sup> <sup>1</sup> Department of Pediatrics with Clinical Assessment Unit, Medical University of Warsaw, Żwirki i Wigury 63A Street, 02-091 Warsaw, Poland

<sup>2</sup> Department of Pediatrics Infectious Diseases, Wroclaw Medical University, Wroclaw, Poland

#### <u>RUSSIA</u>

Zalina A. Alacheva<sup>1</sup>, Ekaterina Alexeeva<sup>1,2</sup>, Petr V. Ananin<sup>1</sup>, Margarita Antsupova<sup>3</sup>, Maya D. Bakradze<sup>1</sup>, Anna Berbenyuk<sup>4</sup>, Polina Bobkova<sup>4</sup>, Svetlana Borzakova<sup>5,6</sup>, Irina L. Chashchina<sup>1</sup>, Yasmin El-Taravi<sup>4</sup>, Andrey P. Fisenko<sup>1</sup>, Marina S. Gautier<sup>1</sup>, Anastasia Glazyrina<sup>7</sup>, Cyrill Gorlenko<sup>4</sup>, Mariia Grosheva<sup>4</sup>, Ekaterina Iakovleva<sup>4</sup>, Herman Kiselev<sup>4</sup>, Elena Kondrikova<sup>4</sup>, Evgeniya Korobyants<sup>7</sup>, Anatoliy A. Korsunskiy<sup>4</sup>, Karina Kovygina<sup>4</sup>, Ekaterina Krasnaya<sup>4</sup>, Seda Kurbanova<sup>7</sup>, Maria K. Kurdup<sup>1</sup>, Anna V. Mamutova<sup>1</sup>, Lyudmila Mazankova<sup>8</sup>, Ilya L. Mitushin<sup>1</sup>, Daniel Munblit<sup>4,9</sup>, Anzhelika Nargizyan<sup>7</sup>, Yanina O. Orlova<sup>1</sup>, Ismail M Osmanov<sup>3,5</sup>, Anastasia S. Polyakova<sup>1</sup>, Anna Pushkareva<sup>4</sup>, Olga

Romanova<sup>4</sup>, Elmira Samitova<sup>3,8</sup>, Anastasia Shvedova<sup>4</sup>, Anna Sologub<sup>7</sup>, Rustem F. Tepaev<sup>1,2</sup>, Anna A. Tkacheva<sup>1</sup>, Margarita Yegiyan<sup>4</sup>, Valeriya Yusupova<sup>7</sup>, Elena Zholobova<sup>10</sup>

<sup>1</sup> Infectious diseases hospital for children with COVID, National Medical Research Center for Children's Health, Moscow, Russia

<sup>2</sup>Department of Pediatrics and Pediatric Rheumatology, Institute of Child's Health, Sechenov First Moscow State Medical University (Sechenov University), Moscow, Russia

<sup>3</sup> ZA Bashlyaeva Children's Municipal Clinical Hospital, Moscow, Russia

<sup>4</sup> Department of Pediatrics and Pediatric Infectious Diseases, Institute of Child's Health, Sechenov First Moscow State Medical University (Sechenov University), Moscow, Russia

<sup>5</sup> Pirogov Russian National Research Medical University, Moscow, Russia

<sup>6</sup> Research Institute for Healthcare Organization and Medical Management of Moscow Healthcare Department, Moscow, Russia

<sup>7</sup> Morozov Children's Municipal Clinical Hospital of the Moscow City Health Department, Moscow, Russia

<sup>8</sup> Russian Medical Academy of Continuous Professional Education of the Ministry of Healthcare of the Russian Federation, Moscow, Russia

<sup>9</sup> Inflammation, Repair and Development Section, National Heart and Lung Institute, Faculty of Medicine, Imperial College London, London, United Kingdom

<sup>10</sup> Department of Children Diseases, Institute of Child's Health, Sechenov First Moscow State Medical University (Sechenov University), Moscow, Russia

#### <u>SPAIN</u>

Carlos Daniel Grasa<sup>1,10</sup>, Cristina Epalza<sup>5</sup>, Nuria Lopez Segura<sup>2</sup>, Federico Martinon-Torres<sup>3</sup>, Susana Melendo<sup>4</sup>, Ana Mendez-Echevarria<sup>1,10</sup>, Juan Miguel Mesa Guzmán<sup>8,9</sup>, Jorge Roberto Palacios Argueta<sup>6</sup>, Irene Rivero-Calle<sup>3</sup>, Jacques Rivière<sup>4</sup>, Moisés Rodríguez-González<sup>7</sup>, Pablo Rojo<sup>5</sup>, Judith Sanchez Manubens<sup>6</sup>, Pere Soler-Palacin<sup>4</sup>, Antoni Soriano-Arandes<sup>4</sup>, Alfredo Tagarro<sup>5</sup>, Serena Villaverde<sup>5</sup>

<sup>1</sup> Department of Pediatric Infectious Diseases, Hospital Universitario La Paz, Madrid, 28046, Madrid, Spain

<sup>2</sup> Hospital del Mar, Pediatrics, Spain

<sup>3</sup> Translational Pediatrics and Infectious Diseases Department. Hospital Clínico Universitario de Santiago de Compostela. Av. Choupana, 15706 Santiago de Compostela, Spain

<sup>4</sup> Pediatric Infectious Diseases and Immunodeficiencies Unit, Hospital Universitario Vall d'Hebron, Barcelona, Catalonia, Spain

<sup>5</sup> Pediatric Research and Clinical Trials Unit (UPIC), Instituto de Investigación Sanitaria Hospital 12 de Octubre (IMAS12), Spain

<sup>6</sup> Pediatric Cardiology Unit, Pediatric Medicine Service, Consorcio Sanitario Parc Tauli, Universitat Autonoma de Barcelona, Sabadell, Spain

<sup>7</sup> Department of Pediatric Cardiology, Puerta del Mar University Hospital, Cadiz, Spain

<sup>8</sup> Hospital Infanta Sofía, Pediatrics Department, San Sebastian de los Reyes, Madrid, Spain

<sup>9</sup> Fundación para la Investigación e Innovación Biomédica de los Hospitales Infanta Sofía y Alcalá de Henares, Madrid, Spain

<sup>10</sup> CIBERINFEC ISCIII, Instituto de Salud Carlos III, Madrid, Spain

#### **SWEDEN**

Maria Altman<sup>1</sup>, Petter Brodin<sup>2</sup>, AnnaCarin Horne<sup>3</sup>, Karin Palmblad<sup>3</sup>

<sup>1</sup> Clinical Epidemiology Division, Department of Medicine Solna, Karolinska University Hospital, Karolinska Institutet, Stockholm, Sweden

<sup>2</sup> Science for Life Laboratory, Department of Women's and Children's Health, Karolinska Institutet, 17165, Solna, Sweden

<sup>3</sup> Unit of Pediatric Rheumatology, Department of Women's and Children's Health, Karolinska Institutet, Karolinska University Hospital, Solna, 171 76, Stockholm, Sweden

#### SWITZERLAND

Barbara Brotschi<sup>1</sup>, Patrick Meyer Sauteur<sup>1</sup>, Jana Pachlopnik Schmid<sup>1</sup>, Seraina Prader<sup>1</sup>, Christa Relly<sup>1</sup>, Luregn J. Schlapbach<sup>1</sup>, Michelle Seiler<sup>1</sup>, Sophie Strasser<sup>1</sup>, Johannes Trück<sup>1</sup>, Kathrin Weber<sup>1</sup>, Daniela Wütz<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup> University Children's Hospital Zurich and Children's Research Center, University of Zurich (UZH), Switzerland

#### <u>SYRIA</u>

Alaa Hamdan<sup>1</sup>, Ibrahim Melhem<sup>2</sup>, Ahmed Moussa<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup> Faculty of medicine, Tishreen university, Lattakia, Syria

<sup>2</sup> Pediatrics department, Tishreen university hospital, Lattakia, Syria

#### THE NETHERLANDS

Joke Dunk<sup>1</sup>, Naomi Ketharanathan<sup>1</sup>, Clementien Vermont<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup> Department of Neonatal and Pediatric Intensive Care, Division of Pediatric Intensive Care, Erasmus MC Sophia Children's Hospital, Rotterdam, The Netherlands

<sup>2</sup> Department of Pediatric Infectious Diseases and Immunology, Erasmus MC-Sophia Children's Hospital, Rotterdam, The Netherlands

#### **TURKEY**

Esra Akyüz Özkan<sup>1</sup>, Benhur Sirvan Cetin<sup>2</sup>, Emine Hafize Erdeniz<sup>4</sup>, İrfan Oğuz Şahin<sup>3</sup>

<sup>1</sup> Department of Pediatrics, Ondokuz Mayıs University Medical Faculty, Samsun, Turkey

<sup>2</sup> Department of Pediatric Infectious Diseases, Erciyes University, Kayseri, Turkey

<sup>3</sup> Department of Pediatric Cardiology, Ondokuz Mayıs University Medical Faculty, Samsun, Turkey

<sup>4</sup> Department of Pediatric Infectious Disease, Ondokuz Mayıs University Medical Faculty, Samsun, Turkey

#### UKRAINE

Galina Borisova<sup>3</sup>, Oksana Boyarchuk<sup>5</sup>, Lidiya Boychenko<sup>3</sup>, Yaryna Boyko<sup>6</sup>, Nadiia Diudenko<sup>3</sup>, Olha Dyvonyak<sup>7</sup>, Olexandr Kasiyan<sup>2</sup>, Kostiantyn Katerynych<sup>4</sup>, Larysa Kostyuchenko<sup>6</sup>, Marina Mamenko<sup>1</sup>, Kateryna Melnyk<sup>3</sup>, Nelia Miagka<sup>3</sup>, Liliya Nazarenko<sup>8</sup>, Iryna Nezgoda<sup>9</sup>, Stanislava Rykova<sup>4</sup>, Olga Svyst<sup>4</sup>, Maria Teslenko<sup>4</sup>, Mykola Trykosh<sup>2</sup>, Nataliya Vasilenko<sup>10</sup>, Alla Volokha<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup> Shupyk National Healthcare University of Ukraine, Kyiv, Ukraine

<sup>2</sup> Kyiv City Children's Clinical Hospital N°1, Kyiv, Ukraine

<sup>3</sup> Kyiv City Children's Clinical Hospital N°2, Kyiv, Ukraine

<sup>4</sup> Medical Center Dobrobut, Kyiv, Ukraine

<sup>5</sup> Department of Children's Diseases and Pediatric Surgery, I. Horbachevsky Ternopil National Medical University, Ternopil, Ukraine

<sup>6</sup> Western-Ukrainian Specialized Children's Medical Center, Lviv, Ukraine

<sup>7</sup> Ternopil City Children's Hospital, Ternopil, Ukraine

<sup>8</sup> Cherkasy Regional Children's Hospital, Cherkasy, Ukraine

<sup>9</sup> Vinnytsa National Pirogov Medical University, Vinnytsa, Ukraine

<sup>10</sup> Kherson Regional Children's Clinical Hospital, Kherson, Ukraine

#### UNITED KINGDOM

Charlotte Adams<sup>16</sup>, Toju Akomolafe<sup>1</sup>, Eslam Al-Abadi<sup>17</sup>, Nele Alders<sup>2</sup>, Styliani Alifieraki<sup>1</sup>, Hareef Ansumanu<sup>1</sup>, Emily Aston<sup>1</sup>, Paula Avram<sup>19</sup>, Alasdair Bamford<sup>2</sup>, Millie Banks<sup>1</sup>, Robin Basu Roy<sup>1</sup>, Thomas Beattie<sup>3</sup>, Olga Boleti<sup>1</sup>, Abbey Bracken<sup>20</sup>, Jonathan Broad<sup>3</sup>, James Cai<sup>1</sup>, Enitan D. Carrol<sup>20</sup>, Michael Carter<sup>3</sup>, Anchit Chandran<sup>1</sup>, James Charlesworth<sup>11</sup>, Jaya Chawla<sup>1</sup>, Hannah Cooper<sup>18</sup>, Samantha Cooray<sup>1,2</sup>, Patrick Davies<sup>16</sup>, Francesca Davis<sup>3</sup>, Simon B. Drysdale<sup>21</sup>, Ella Dzora<sup>2</sup>, Marieke Emonts<sup>5,6</sup>, Ceri Evans<sup>7</sup>, Katy Fidler<sup>15</sup>, Caroline Foster<sup>1</sup>, Chen Gong<sup>3</sup>, Berin Gongrun<sup>1</sup>, Carmen Gonzalez<sup>19</sup>, Berin Gorgun<sup>1</sup>, Louis Grandjean<sup>2</sup>, Karlie Grant<sup>2</sup>, Jonathan Guo<sup>1</sup>, Yael Hacohen<sup>2</sup>, Jack Hall<sup>1</sup>, Hytham K. S. Hamid<sup>22</sup>, Jane Hassell<sup>2</sup>, Christine Hesketh<sup>8</sup>, Jessica Hewlett<sup>3</sup>, Ahmad Hnieno<sup>1</sup>, Hannah Holt-Davis<sup>9</sup>, Aleena Hossain<sup>1</sup>, Shiying Hu<sup>21</sup>, Lee D Hudson<sup>2</sup>, Sharon Jheeta<sup>1</sup>, Mae Johnson<sup>2</sup>, Sarah Johnson<sup>1</sup>, Deepthi Jyothish<sup>18</sup>, Beate Kampmann<sup>10</sup>, Akhila Kavirayani<sup>11</sup>, Deborah Kelly<sup>12</sup>, Arangan Kirubakaran<sup>1</sup>, Filip Kucera<sup>2</sup>, Daniel Langer<sup>8</sup>, George Lawson<sup>1</sup>, Emily A Lees<sup>24</sup>, Rebecca Lenihan<sup>20</sup>, Jon Lillie<sup>13</sup>, Katherine Longbottom<sup>1</sup>, Hermione Lyall<sup>1</sup>, Niamh Mackdermott<sup>1</sup>, Sarah Maltby<sup>19</sup>, Thomas Mclelland<sup>18</sup>, Anne-Marie McMahon<sup>19</sup>, Danielle Miller<sup>11</sup>, Mariana Miranda<sup>1</sup>, Luwaiza Mirza<sup>3</sup>, Zoe Morrison<sup>12</sup>, Karyn Moshal<sup>2</sup>, Jennifer Muller<sup>12</sup>, Phoebe Musuka<sup>4</sup>, Evangelia Myttaraki<sup>1</sup>, Simon Nadel<sup>1</sup>, Sreedevi Nair<sup>4</sup>, Luke Nuttall<sup>1</sup>, Oyinkansola Oremakinde<sup>21</sup>, Daniella Osaghae<sup>1</sup>, Fatima Osman<sup>1</sup>, Anna Ostrzewska<sup>1</sup>, Davide Paccagnella<sup>12</sup>, Mrinalini Panthula<sup>1</sup>, Eleni Papachatzi<sup>1</sup>, Charalampia Papadopoulou<sup>2</sup>, Fahim Patel<sup>23</sup>, Harsita Patel<sup>1</sup>, Helen Payne<sup>1</sup>, Justin Penner<sup>2</sup>, Shervin Polandi<sup>1</sup>, Andrew J. Prendergast<sup>7</sup>, Padmanabhan Ramnarayan<sup>2</sup>, Lasith Ranasinghe<sup>1</sup>, Muthukumaran Ravichandran<sup>12</sup>, Sophie Rhys-Evans<sup>1,4</sup>, Andrew Riordan<sup>4</sup>, Charlene M.C. Rodrigues<sup>2</sup>, Lauren Roe<sup>1</sup>, Sam Romaine<sup>20</sup>, Nina Schobi<sup>4</sup>, James Seddon<sup>1</sup>, Delane Shingadia<sup>2</sup>, Oishi Sikdar<sup>1</sup>, Anand Srivastava<sup>14</sup>, Siske Struik<sup>12</sup>, Thomas Sun<sup>3</sup>, Rachel Wei Tan<sup>1</sup>, Alice Taylor<sup>2</sup>, Amanda Taylor<sup>1</sup>, Andrew Taylor<sup>18</sup>, Steven Tran<sup>1</sup>, Stavros Tsagkaris<sup>3</sup>, Gareth Tudor-Williams<sup>1</sup>, Sarah van den Berg<sup>3</sup>, Fabian van der Velden<sup>5,6</sup>, Lyn Ventilacion<sup>13</sup>, Paul A Wellman<sup>3</sup>, Joseph Withers Green<sup>1</sup>, Michael P. Yanney<sup>14</sup>, Shunmay Yeung<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup> Department of Pediatric Infectious Diseases, Imperial College Healthcare NHS Trust, London, W2 1NY, UK

<sup>2</sup> Great Ormond Street Hospital for Children NHS Foundation Trust, London, WC1N 3JH, UK

<sup>3</sup> Department of Women and Children's Health, School of Life Course Sciences, King's College London, St

Thomas' Hospital, SE1 7EH, London, UK

<sup>4</sup> Alder Hey Children's hospital, Pediatric Infectious Diseases, Liverpool, UK

<sup>5</sup> Pediatric Immunology, Infectious Diseases and Allergy, Great North Children's Hospital, Newcastle upon Tyne Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust, Queen Victoria Road NE1 4LP, Newcastle upon Tyne, UK

<sup>6</sup> Translational and Clinical Research Institute, Newcastle University, Newcastle upon Tyne, UK

<sup>7</sup> Department of Pediatric Infectious Diseases, Royal London Hospital, Barts Health NHS Trust, London E1 1BB, UK and Blizard Institute, Queen Mary University of London, London E1 2AT, UK

<sup>8</sup> Pediatric Emergency Department, St Helier Hospital, Wrythe Lane, Carshalton, Surrey, SM5 1AA, UK

<sup>9</sup> Pediatric Department, West Cumberland Hospital, Whitehaven, CA28 8JG, UK

<sup>10</sup> Faculty of Infectious and Tropical Disease, London School of Hygiene and Tropical Medicine, London, WC1E 7HT, UK

<sup>11</sup> Department of Pediatric Rheumatology, Oxford University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust, Oxford, OX3 7HE, UK

<sup>12</sup> Children and Young Adult's Research Unit, Noah's Ark Children's Hospital for Wales, Heath Park, Cardiff, CF14 4XW, UK

<sup>13</sup> Pediatric Department, Lister Hospital, East and North Hertfordshire Hospital NHS Trust, Stevenage, SG1 4AB, UK

<sup>14</sup> Department of Pediatrics, Sherwood Forest Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust, UK

<sup>15</sup> Department of Pediatrics, Royal Alexandra Children's Hospital, Eastern Road, Brighton East Sussex BN2 5BE, UK

<sup>16</sup> Pediatric Critical Care Unit, Nottingham University Hospitals NHS Trust, Nottingham, UK

<sup>17</sup> Childhood Arthritis and Rheumatic Diseases Unit, Birmingham Women's and Children's Hospital NHS FT, Birmingham, B4 6NH, UK

<sup>18</sup> Department of General Pediatrics, Birmingham Women's and Children's NHS Foundation Trust, Birmingham, B4 6NH, UK

<sup>19</sup> Pediatric Rheumatology Department, Sheffield Children's Hospital Western Bank, Sheffield, S10 2TH, UK

<sup>20</sup> Institute of Infection Veterinary and Ecological Sciences, University of Liverpool, Liverpool, UK

<sup>21</sup> St George's University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust, London, UK

<sup>22</sup> Department of Surgery, East Kent Hospitals University NHS Foundation trust, UK

<sup>23</sup> Department of Pediatrics, Rheumatology, Birmingham Women's and Children's NHS Foundation Trust, Birmingham, B4 6NH, UK

<sup>24</sup> Department of Pediatrics, Oxford University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust, Oxford, OX3 7HE, UK

#### UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

Aditya Badheka<sup>1</sup>, Sarah Badran<sup>2</sup>, Dwight M. Bailey<sup>3</sup>, Anna Kathryn Burch<sup>4</sup>, Jane C. Burns<sup>5</sup>, Catherine Cichon<sup>5</sup>, Blake Cirks<sup>6</sup>, Michael D. Dallman<sup>7</sup>, Dennis R. Delany<sup>8</sup>, Mary Fairchok<sup>9</sup>, Samantha Friedman<sup>10</sup>, Jennifer Geracht<sup>6</sup>, Allison Langs-Barlow<sup>9</sup>, Kelly Mann<sup>9</sup>, Amruta Padhye<sup>10</sup>, Alexis Quade<sup>5</sup>, Kacy Alyne Ramirez<sup>14</sup>, John Rockett<sup>10</sup>, Imran Ali Sayed<sup>11</sup>, Roberto P. Santos<sup>15</sup>, Amr A. Shahin<sup>12</sup>, Adriana Tremoulet<sup>5</sup>, Samuel Umaru<sup>13</sup>, Rebecca Widener<sup>4</sup>

<sup>1</sup> Department of Pediatrics, University of Iowa Stead Family Children's Hospital, Iowa City, IA, 52242, USA <sup>2</sup> Cardiology, Children's Hospital Los Angeles, Los Angeles, CA, 90027, USA

<sup>3</sup> Division of Pediatric Critical Care Medicine, Levine Children's Hospital, Atrium Health, Charlotte, NC, USA

<sup>4</sup> Division of Infectious Disease, Department of Pediatrics. University of South Carolina School of Medicine, Prisma Health Children's Hospital - Midlands. Columbia, SC, 29203, USA

<sup>5</sup> Department of Pediatrics, Rady Children's Hospital San Diego/University of California San Diego, 9500 Gilman Way MC 0641 La Jolla CA 92093, USA

<sup>6</sup> Walter Reed National Military Medical Center, 8901 Wisconsin Avenue Bethesda Maryland, 20889-0001, USA

<sup>7</sup> University of South Carolina School of Medicine, Department of Pediatrics, Division of Critical Care Medicine,

Prisma Health Children's Hospital – Midlands, Columbia, SC 29203, USA

<sup>8</sup> Department of Pediatric Cardiology, Medical University of South Carolina, 10 McClennan Banks Drive, Charleston, SC, USA

<sup>9</sup> Department of Pediatric Infectious Diseases, Mary Bridge Children's Hospital Tacoma, WA, USA

<sup>10</sup> Pediatric Critical Care Division, University of Missouri Health Care, 400 N. Keene St., Columbia, Missouri, USA

<sup>11</sup> Department of Pediatric Critical Care Medicine, University of Colorado, Children's Hospital of Colorado at Colorado Springs, USA

<sup>12</sup> Department of pediatric intensive care, Tucson Medical Center, Tucson, Arizona, USA

<sup>13</sup> Pediatric Critical Care, Lehigh Valley Reilly Children's Hospital, Allentown, Pennsylvania, USA

<sup>14</sup> Atrium Health Wake Forest Baptist Medical Center, Winston-Salem, North Carolina, USA

<sup>15</sup> University of Mississippi Medical Center, Jackson, Mississippi, USA

#### **ZIMBABWE**

Gwendoline Kandawasvika<sup>1</sup>, Angela Hilda Mujuru<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup> University of Zimbabwe, College of Health Sciences, Child and Adolescent Health Unit, Box A 168, Avondale, Harare, Zimbabwe

### **Supplementary Methods**

#### Introduction and changes from previous analysis

The Best Available Treatment Study (BATS) was initiated in May 2020 in the early months after first recognition of the clinical syndrome of MIS-C. BATS aimed to provide evidence for treatment recommendations for MIS-C by systematic collection, and analysis of outcomes of the treatments chosen by individual paediatricians responsible for patient care. In view of the urgent need to provide clinicians with evidence to support treatment recommendations, an analysis of the first 614 patients enrolled in BATS was reported in the Journal in July 2021.<sup>1</sup> Recruitment has continued, with the knowledge that larger sample sizes were needed to be able to make more definitive recommendations, and we now report data from a substantially larger cohort of patients.

Recruitment and study methodology remain largely unchanged, however minor modifications were made in view of additional accumulated information about the disease. An updated analysis plan was published at the study clinical trials site (<u>https://doi.org/10.1186/ISRCTN69546370</u>, Statistical Analysis Plan – version 2) prior to the start of any analysis being undertaken. We report here additional details for the final analysis undertaken, paying specific attention to any alterations in methodology from the published analysis plan.

#### **Patient Recruitment**

BATS invited recruitment of children with a wide, inclusive definition of MIS-C. The instructions to participating centres, including the various definitions in use, are contained in the 'BATS handbook' which is available as supplementary material and at the trial registration site (https://doi.org/10.1186/ISRCTN69546370). The case report form used in BATS included only limited data on coronary artery aneurysm resolution on follow up. In view of the significance of coronary artery outcomes to management decisions we therefore supplemented the previously reported CRF with an additional targeted follow up questionnaire on resolution of coronary artery aneurysms (Appendix A, page 68).

The protocol and study information were translated into Spanish by Gabriela Ivankovich-Escoto and Rolando Ulloa-Gutierrez and into Portuguese by Rolando Andres Paternina-de la Ossa. Enrolment at individual study sites was undertaken by local investigators. The study management team and international advisory board (consortium membership, pages 3-11) wrote the statistical analysis plan.

#### Data preparation and non-outcome definitions

#### Data entry and processing

Data were entered in RedCap version 6.14.2. The included patients were finalized on 25<sup>th</sup> April 2022, including all patients admitted to hospital before 1<sup>st</sup> March 2022. All subsequent processing and analysis were undertaken in R version 4.1.2.<sup>2</sup> A list of R packages used can be found in Appendix C (page 70). Validation and correction of admission, discharge and immunomodulatory treatment dates was undertaken. Subsequent data changes were restricted to correction of obvious errors and missing data, with the database finalized on 6<sup>th</sup> June 2022. Data were processed such that repeated clinical, laboratory and treatment variables were represented in a table with one row per patient-day.

#### Inclusion and exclusion criteria

Clinicians included the patients on their judgement of the patient meeting one or more of the international definitions for MIS-C.<sup>3–5</sup> Patients were excluded from analysis for the following reasons:

- No admission date
- No data entered onto treatment form
- No discharge date and absence of any daily data (level of care, KD features, blood results, cardiac investigations)
- Unclear date of first immunomodulatory therapy
- Suspected data misalignment with no confirmation of data validity from recruiting site (see below)
- Neonates, aged <1-month

#### Inclusion for weighted analysis

Only patients treated from the day of admission or transfer contributed outcomes for weighted analyses, as determination of matching covariates and outcomes was not possible for patients treated before transfer to the recruiting centre. Where recruiting sites entered complete data (enabling both covariate balancing and outcome assessments) from the referring centre we treated this as one single admission for weighted analysis. All patients meeting the above criteria were included for weighted analysis, unless stated in specific subgroup and sensitivity analyses.

#### Treatment definitions

**Primary treatment** was defined as the immunomodulatory agent(s) initiated on the same calendar day before any other treatments ("Day 0"). Where two agents were commenced on the same calendar day this was considered a combination treatment. Thus, primary treatment was either single agent or multi-agent therapy. Immunomodulators administered on subsequent days were considered secondary treatments. Patients who only received immunomodulator therapy with low dose oral glucocorticoids were excluded from the glucocorticoid primary treatment group and reclassified as receiving no treatment for the purposes of establishing treatment effects. Low-dose glucocorticoids were defined as an equivalent dose (as per BNFc)<sup>6</sup> of less than 1mg/kg or 40mg-total of prednisolone, whichever was lower. Low dose IV hydrocortisone is commonly used as an adjunct to inotropic therapy in sick children with MIS-C. We therefore classified courses of IV hydrocortisone as non-glucocorticoid therapy where the administered dose was low, as defined above.

#### Missing data, interpolation, and imputation

To reduce the volume of missing data we communicated with the recruiting sites to address missing or inconsistent data for key fields required for the analysis (Appendix D, page 71). Level-of-care and supportive treatment variables, including respiratory support and inotropes, were interpolated for missing daily data where preceding and following values were identical. Where missing data for respiratory support and inotropes followed a final value, if the final value indicated no support was needed, subsequent daily values will be interpolated as no support needed. Further, where total number of days of invasive ventilation, non-invasive ventilation, oxygen, and inotropic support are available, missing data were imputed assuming no discontinuous periods of treatment (supported by a low frequency of multiple episodes of inotropes, ventilation, or oxygen usage in complete data in the previous analysis).

In addition, for a particular level of care, if the final outcome data reported a patient had no support (e.g., no days of respiratory support) and the daily data for each day was either missing or entered as no support needed, then we interpolated the patient to have no support needed on all days of daily data whenever missing. Finally, where missing values of respiratory support followed a period of ventilatory support, with the reported individual days of ventilatory support identical to the reported total days of ventilatory support, we imputed the missing respiratory support values to be no support if the total days of oxygen therapy are reported as zero, otherwise we imputed to a value of "Oxygen or air" for the purpose of outcome assignments. Where patients were missing fever data on the day of discharge only and were recorded as not having a fever the previous day we imputed "no fever" for the final day.

#### Merging consecutive admissions

Where multiple hospitals within one location (city/town/country) report patients, we inspected plots of admissions and ages to identify possible consecutive admissions of the same patient. More detailed comparison of age, sex, weight, reported ethnicity, admission periods and laboratory and clinical variables were used to confirm, and recruiting sites contacted to confirm details. Consecutive admissions were merged into a single record by splicing daily data and taking previous admission baseline data and final admission outcomes, with original records excluded.

#### Assessing for misalignment

During data validation there was a suspicion of data misalignment. This could occur because dates of treatments were recorded by date, but timings of other data were recorded by days relative to admission, and the dates were calculated for comparison with treatments based on recorded admission date. In our definition "day 0" corresponded to the day of admission, and "day 1" to the first full day in hospital. If sites entered admission data incorrectly as day 1 data, then misalignment could occur. Excess daily data for some patients alerted us to this issue. We inspected each patient for discrepancies between the entered daily data and admission length, and overly similar daily data for distinct days, to assess for potential misalignment. We then contacted recruiting sites for clarification of data entry processes and corrected for any misalignment as instructed by recruiting sites.

#### Laboratory values

Each site reported laboratory variables in units prespecified in the data collection tool, or with alternative units. Conversion to the same units was undertaken. Manual inspection of result distributions from individual sites was undertaken to identify and correct incorrect or discrepant units. Extreme outliers were inspected on a per individual basis and corrected when the value was discrepant with the rest of the biomarker time course, and it is clear how to resolve the discrepancy (e.g., a single haemoglobin value out by a factor of 10, indicating an error in recording units). Extreme outliers were those visibly far outside the range of most results. Where it was not possible to correct these outliers, contacted recruiting sites for confirmation, and excluded results which could not be resolved.

#### Definition of clinical severity scale

For each day of admission, clinical severity was calculated on an ordinal scale:

- 1. Ventilated (invasive or non-invasive) and on inotropic support
- 2. Ventilated (invasive or non-invasive)
- 3. Inotropic support
- 4. Receiving oxygen
- No supportive therapy, last CRP ≥ 50
   No supportive therapy, last CRP < 50</li>

7. Discharged

Additional levels were added for graphical presentation: death, extracorporeal membrane oxygenation (ECMO), pre-admission, transferred, discharged and level-of-care unknown. This ordinal scale was

<sup>5.5</sup> No supportive therapy, CRP unknown

used in the previous analysis and was developed by clinical consensus because there were no existing clinical severity scales for this condition when the BATS clinical database form was developed. As previously described, it would be inappropriate to use scales intended for acute COVID-19, which is initially a respiratory illness progressing to systemic disease, whereas MIS-C is a systemic illness with cardiovascular compromise predominating, and secondary respiratory compromise in the majority of patients. Our scale considered escalating levels of clinical support and, in those not on support, differentiates by level of CRP and admission status. This accords with clinical priorities when caring for patients: for those receiving organ support, coming off support is a key sign of improvement. For those not receiving organ support, improvement in inflammation is particularly important, and following that being fit for discharge.

#### Demographics & baseline clinical data

Age was collected in years and additional months. Where additional months were missing, they were assumed to be zero. If the child was under 2-years old, we contacted recruiting sites to clarify age in months (not required for any patients). If age in years was missing and the data could not be obtained, the child's age was replaced with the predicted age based on sex and weight of other children in the cohort using multiple linear regression for imputation (not required for any patients). Patients' weight-for-age Z scores were calculated from the WHO reference data using the RCPCH Growth API.<sup>7</sup>

The World Bank lending group classification was used for country economic status. Significant past medical history was defined as any of: primary or secondary immunodeficiency; HIV; autoimmune disease; chronic lung disease; congenital heart disease; chronic neurological disorder; or malignancy.

#### Patients meeting WHO MIS-C criteria and KD criteria

For specific analyses we required a robust method of ensuring patients would meet the WHO MIS-C criteria.<sup>4</sup> We used the extensive data collected on clinical features and laboratory markers both at presentation and during admission to generate data-driven classifications, grouping patients as follows:

- 1. Meet WHO MIS-C criteria
- 2. Meet WHO MIS-C criteria except for one criterion
- 3. Missing > 1 criteria for WHO MIS-C
- 4. Meet WHO MIS-C criteria but with bacteraemia or toxic-shock syndrome

We similarly used a data-driven approach to determine if patients would meet the 2017 AHA criteria for Kawasaki Disease,<sup>8</sup> grouping patients into one of three groups:

- 1. Meet complete KD criteria
- 2. Atypical KD
- 3. Not KD

#### **Outcome definitions**

#### Primary Outcome Definitions

#### 1. Inotropic support or ventilation or death (dichotomous)

Inotropic support or ventilation (invasive or non-invasive) at any time from the second day posttreatment, or death at any time. Inotropic support and ventilation were regarded as not available if the patient was transferred or died on day 1 or 2, without report of support being received on day 2. If the patient was discharged on day 1 or 2, the outcome was regarded as negative. Death was regarded as missing for all transferred patients, and as negative for all patients whose destination was not recorded.

#### 2. Time-to-improvement in clinical severity (time-to-event analysis)

Improvement was defined as a one-point improvement on the above ordinal clinical severity scale. For each patient, the time-to-improvement was calculated in days as the <u>first</u> time the patients had improved without subsequent deterioration in clinical severity. If the patient improved but subsequently deteriorated their time-to-improvement was defined by the first time they improved after the deterioration. This equates to improvement being defined by:

- Time to come off ventilator or inotropes for patients receiving both therapies (without subsequently requiring both ventilation and inotropes on further days)
- Time to come off ventilator for patients ventilated (without requiring further ventilation)
- Time to come off inotropes for patients receiving inotropes (without requiring further inotropes)
- Time to come off oxygen for patients receiving oxygen (without requiring further oxygen)
- Time for CRP to fall below 50 mg/L for patients with final CRP on day of treatment or earlier of greater than or equal to 50 mg/L (without CRP rising to ≥ 50 mg/L on a later day)
- Time until discharge for all patients, where preceding other event

Time-to-improvement was defined as not available for patients who died, or where baseline clinical severity was unclear due to missing data. If the patient was transferred and they required any level of support in the two-days prior to transfer (ECMO, inotropes or ventilation) then time-to-improvement was defined as not available. Otherwise, if the patients improved prior to transfer without subsequent deterioration their time-to-improvement was defined as the time-to-improvement as above. When a patient had definitely improved at some point, but missing data led to unclear exact times to improvement we right-censored the patient for time-to-event analysis, using the last date the patient had not improved as the right-censored time. We included this right-censoring for improvement based on a reduction in CRP, which led to greater numbers of censored patients in this analysis compared to the previous analysis as measurement of CRP was not performed daily for many patients. A post-hoc sensitivity analysis using the known time-to-improvement in CRP without right-censoring for days without CRP measurements was performed to determine the impact the additional right-censoring would impact results. This shows no significant difference between these two approaches (page 65). For time-to-event analysis, the origin (time when patients are first deemed to be at risk) was the first day after treatment initiation, whilst the end point was the time to improvement (defined above) or alternatively the patients is right censored.

#### Secondary Outcome Definitions

#### 1. No improvement at day 2 (dichotomous)

Patients were defined as not having improved by day 2 if their clinical severity on the ordinal scale on day 2 was at least as bad as day 0. Improvement was regarded as unknown if a patient was transferred on or before day 2, and negative for a patient who died on or before day 2.

#### 2. Failure/escalation of primary treatment

Defined as the addition of any new immunomodulator from the first day after primary treatment, <u>or</u> an additional dose of IVIG after primary treatment which includes IVIG, <u>or</u> an escalation in glucocorticoid therapy after primary treatment which includes glucocorticoids. Escalation in glucocorticoid therapy was defined as an increase of more than 5 mg/kg prednisolone equivalent in total daily dose, as

defined by BNFc. If transferred to another hospital before the fifth day following primary treatment, failure will be regarded as not available if they have not escalated in care up to time of transfer.

#### 3. Death or Inotropic support or Ventilation

We treated the individual components of the composite primary outcome, as defined above, as individual secondary outcomes.

#### 4. Fever

Defined as presence of fever at any point from day 2. If no fever reported, but missing data, the outcome was regarded as not available, except for the rare cases of final-day imputation (described above).

#### 5. Increase in level of support

This was defined as any commencement of:

- ECMO for patients not on ECMO on day 0
- Any ventilation for patients not ventilated on day 0
- Invasive ventilation for patients receiving non-invasive ventilation on day 0
- Inotropic support for patients not on inotropes on day 0
- Oxygen for patients not on oxygen on day 0

Where none of the above led to classification of deterioration, death was regarded as deterioration and transfer was regarded as the outcome being unavailable. Patients discharged home or with unreported discharge destination were regarded as not having increased support.

#### 6. Persisting/new coronary artery dilation at discharge

The presence of a coronary artery with Lopez z-score  $\geq$  2.5 or a report of aneurysm without z-score on the final in-hospital echocardiogram, undertaken on the second or subsequent days following treatment. Outcome was regarded as not available if no echocardiogram reported, and negative if echocardiogram reported with no aneurysm or z-score < 2.5. Presence of pre-treatment coronary artery dilatation was added as a balancing covariate for weighted analysis (see analysis section pages 18-20).

#### 7. Left ventricular dysfunction

Defined as the presence of left ventricular dysfunction on any echocardiogram from day 2 after commencement of primary immunomodulatory treatment. For this analysis, the presence of left ventricular dysfunction on or during the 2-days prior to starting immunomodulatory treatment was added as an additional balancing covariate for weighted analysis (see analysis section pages 18-20) to control for confounding due to potential differences in pre-treatment prevalence in each of the treatment arms.

#### 8. Persisting Coronary artery dilatation after discharge

We collected follow up data on coronary artery aneurysm only for patients with CAA present on their final echocardiogram during admission. We therefore were missing follow up data from patients who did not develop CAA during admission, or where CAA resolved prior to discharge. We were therefore unable to perform IPTW analysis of the longer-term resolution data due to high degree of missingness. We instead report descriptive analysis, stratified by primary treatment group, of presence of aneurysms during admission, both pre- and post-treatment initiation, and resolution of aneurysms following discharge. We present absolute numbers and percentages of those with

resolution at any time, and also within 6-weeks and 12-weeks of treatment initiation. This combined approach was needed as the exact date of resolution is generally unclear, with typically many days/weeks between follow-up echocardiograms. We also present similar data for patients in the glucocorticoid alone primary treatment group, separated into those who did or did-not receive subsequent treatment with IVIG.

#### 9. Inflammatory markers and other biomarkers

Inflammatory markers were plotted as percentages of the peak value, per patient, throughout the course of their admission relative to treatment initiation for each treatment group. Line plots were weighted by covariate-balancing propensity scores as described in confounding section. Smoothed curves with confidence intervals were plotted using a generalized additive model (geom\_smooth with the "gam" method, from the ggplot2 package in R).<sup>9</sup> Comparisons were also made within each treatment group for age and for patients who fulfilled the 2017 AHA criteria for Kawasaki Disease. To ensure time course plots reflected clinically relevant changes over time, patients were only included if they had relevant blood result available both before and after treatment initiation, and only if their last value up to treatment initiation was abnormal (cut-offs defined in relevant figures).

#### 10. Complications of drug therapy

Complications deemed by the treating clinician to be the result of immunomodulatory treatment, including but not limited to: allergy/anaphylaxis, cataracts, gastric perforation, gastric ulceration, hip necrosis, hyperglycaemia, hyperlactataemia, opportunistic infection, profound bradycardia, psychosis, and glucocorticoid-induced hypertension. These are reported descriptively.

#### Analysis

#### Sample-size estimations

We performed a pre-analysis sample-size estimation calculation that was published with our updated statistical analysis plan (Appendix B, page 69). When drafting the analysis plan, we performed a scoping analysis of the primary treatments received by this larger cohort, to determine which treatment groups we would have reasonable power to compare. This was undertaken with no examination of outcomes by treatment group, and hence did not compromise comparison of different treatments in any way.

#### Confounding

All primary outcomes, sensitivity analyses and subgroup analyses (planned and post-hoc), and secondary outcomes (excluding persisting coronary artery dilatation > 6-weeks from treatment initiation, and complications) underwent analysis following Inverse probability of treatment weighting (IPTW) to control for baseline confounding factors, followed by treatment effect estimation using the same list of confounders, to provide doubly robust estimates. This was implemented using weighting by multinomial covariate-balanced propensity scores,<sup>10</sup> as implemented by Weightlt version 0.12.0,<sup>11</sup> using the "just-identified" approach. The Average Treatment Effect (ATE) was estimated, except when comparing inflammatory markers between treated and untreated patients, when the Average Treatment Effect in the Treated (ATT) was calculated with the untreated group as the reference due to the likely dissimilarity of a smaller untreated group and the need to preserve the full sample. Due to some excessive weights and exceptional covariate balancing in most analyses we implemented additional steps of weight stabilization, and truncation to the upper 99<sup>th</sup> centile weight for large weights, as long as covariate balancing was still acceptable based on the criteria below. This reduces weight variability and hence can increase estimated sample sizes whilst maintaining adequate covariate balancing.

Clinical and demographic covariates were adjusted from those used in the previous analysis, based on consensus opinion within the study team and international advisory board, aiming to define key variables related to both treatment decisions and outcomes. Covariates were used in both covariate balancing and treatment effect estimation to produce doubly-robust estimates.

The following variables were used for balancing:

- 1. Age, continuous
- 2. Sex, binary
- 3. Weight-for-age z-score greater than 2, binary (imputation was undertaken for missing values: patients with "severe obesity" checked in the list of comorbidities were assigned to weight-for-age z-score >2, whereas patients without this comorbidity were assigned to the <2 group)
- 4. Significant comorbidity, binary
- 5. Resource group, three categories were considered: High income, Upper-middle income, Low and Lower-middle income (low and lower-middle were grouped as very few sites from low-income countries recruited patients to BATS). High income as the largest category, was the reference group, with two binary covariates coding the other two categories
- 6. KD features, binary (meeting criteria for complete KD at any time up to treatment day)
- 7. Requiring inotropes up to treatment day, binary
- 8. Requiring mechanical ventilation or ECMO up to treatment day, binary
- 9. Maximum CRP up to treatment day (baseline CRP), continuous

Balancing was repeated for every analysis on the population providing the outcome. This list was reduced for specific analyses based on data availability and area of common support across treatment groups. Important covariates were added for certain secondary analyses as described in the secondary outcome definitions. No imputation for missing outcome data was undertaken except for that already described above. When comparing patients receiving and not receiving immunomodulator therapy, variables reporting features up to the day of treatment were replaced with corresponding variables on admission due to a lack of corresponding first treatment day for those not receiving any immunomodulator.

We aimed for absolute standardised mean differences of 0.1 and below in continuous variables, and Kolmogorov-Smirnov distances of 0.1 and below. Love plots were used to examine the extent of imbalance and consider the potential impact. We tolerated some deviation since covariates are also included in outcome models, prioritizing the target of absolute standardized mean differences of 0.1 and below.

In our updated analysis plan we stated our intention to attempt to impute missing baseline CRP values. In the previous analysis we instead used an additional dichotomous baseline variable for missingness of CRP, but since this missingness indicator may not be related to outcome this may have led to increased variance of treatment effect estimates, which led us to attempt imputation methods. We tested our imputation models within each main primary treatment group, using samples with known baseline CRP values (maximum up to treatment day) split into 75-25% training and test sets. We attempted imputation using median imputation and K-nearest neighbours, using various combinations of other demographic and baseline variables as predictors. All imputation methods had very poor accuracy to predict the true values, based on root mean square error, R<sup>2</sup> and visual inspection of fitted values against actual values. We therefore did not impute baseline CRP values, and patients without baseline CRP values were instead excluded from weighted analyses. Sensitivity

analyses using median imputation of missing baseline CRP values (Fig2A-D, main paper) and removing baseline CRP from the list of covariates (pages 64-65) showed no difference in treatment effect estimates for the two primary outcomes between any of these models.

#### Models for treatment effect estimation

We used weighted logistic-regression methods to analyse dichotomous outcomes. Robust sandwich standard errors were used, with dichotomous outcomes analysed using the survey package,<sup>12</sup> adding all covariates used in covariate balancing, to produce doubly-robust estimates. To account for overdispersion quasibinomial regression with a logit link function (a generalised linear model) was used to estimate odds ratios and 95% confidence intervals. Time to event analyses were undertaken using weighted Cox proportional hazards model estimates of average hazard ratios.<sup>13</sup> Right censoring for missing outcome data was used, and is described above in the primary outcome definitions. The assumption of linearity for quantitative predictors (age and CRP) for both quasibinomial and Coxregression models was assessed by visual inspection of each predictor against the linear predictors from each more (for example, the logit of the outcome for quasibinomial regression). We assessed the proportional hazards assumption by 1) Schoenfeld tests for non-proportionality both for individual covariates and a global Schoenfeld test; and 2) assessing plots of the scaled Schoenfeld residuals versus time.<sup>14</sup>

#### Confounding with matched models

We performed a planned sensitivity analysis through implementing propensity score matching instead of propensity weighting, again with IVIG as the reference treatment. We used the nearest neighbour matching method with "glm" distance measure and 1:1 ratio without replacement. Due to model specification limitations in the software package used<sup>15</sup> we were unable to estimate the treatment effect using the planned target of Average Treatment Effect (ATE). We therefore estimated and report results using the Average Treatment Effect in the Treated (ATT) estimand. A post-hoc sensitivity analysis using the Average Treatment Effect in the Controls (ATC) was also explored, which demonstrated no significant change in our findings. We conducted separate matching procedures for each pair of comparators and each primary outcome. Observations with incomplete baseline covariate data were removed from the analysis. For each matching, cases missing the outcome of interest were removed. Binomial logistic regression analysis was conducted for each matched sample separately.

Adequate covariate balance was achieved, based on maximum absolute standardised mean difference not exceeding 0.1 with the corresponding calipers of 0.15 for the first primary outcome comparison of Glucocorticoids vs IVIG, and 0.2 for each of the other 3 matchings. The robustness of the results was checked by varying caliper size and observing the changes in effect sizes and confidence intervals. Moderate changes in caliper values did not affect conclusions of the analysis. Adjusted odds ratios and average hazard ratios are reported in Figure 2 of the main paper. Raw values are reported in pages 32-34. A love-plot of the covariate balancing can be found on page 66.

#### Correction for multiple hypothesis testing

Correction for multiple hypothesis testing was undertaken using the Bonferroni-Holm method for the two primary outcomes and the two primary treatment comparisons. All other outcomes are presented with 95% confidence intervals and unadjusted p-values.

#### Subgroup, sensitivity, and other analyses

Unadjusted death and complication rates were reported on all included patients. E-values are presented for primary outcomes as per the method of VanderWeele and Ding.<sup>16</sup> The following planned subgroup analyses were undertaken for all primary outcomes:

- Patients fully meeting the WHO criteria for MIS-C
- Meeting WHO criteria except for presence of bacteremia
- Missing WHO classification by one criterion
- Patients from High- and Upper-middle-income countries
- Stratified by age-group as follows: Under 6-years; 6-11-years; Over 11-years
- Restricting to patients without significant comorbidities
- Stratifying patients based on degree of inflammatory response, separating by peak CRP before treatment into tertiles.

The following planned sensitivity analyses were performed for all primary outcomes:

- Defining primary treatment as all immunomodulatory treatments administered over two consecutive days (days 0-1) (as per previous analysis)
- Using propensity matching model rather than covariate-balancing propensity score weighted analysis
- For the 2<sup>nd</sup> primary outcome, time to improvement in clinical severity, we undertook an additional sensitivity analysis requiring a 2-point improvement in clinical severity on the ordinal scale.
- For secondary outcome 7, Left ventricular dysfunction from day-two following treatment, we performed a sensitivity analysis including maximal troponin to treatment day as an additional covariate, excluding samples without a troponin measurement before treatment.

A planned secondary analysis was also performed comparing primary treatments of glucocorticoids alone with IVIG & glucocorticoids, using glucocorticoids as the reference group with the same methodology described above (for primary and secondary outcomes).

We were unable to perform weighted analysis for the following planned subgroups, predominantly due to small numbers and therefore were unable to balance covariates:

- Patients from Low- and Lower-middle-income countries (N = 103 total patients)
- Missing WHO classification by >1 criterion (N = 54 total patients)
- For the 2<sup>nd</sup> primary outcome, time to improvement in clinical severity, we intended to perform subgroup analyses for each baseline severity category on the ordinal scale. For example, we intended to analyse the time to improvement for patients who were ventilated at the time of starting primary treatment as one subgroup analysis, and then repeating this for the other severity categories. Due to small numbers in most groups, we instead aggregated baseline clinical severity groups into two baseline severity groups: those requiring intensive support (ventilation and/or inotropes) and those not requiring intensive support.

To interrogate the data further after reviewing results from our planned analyses we undertook the following additional post-hoc analyses:

- Post-hoc subgroup and sensitivity analyses for two primary outcomes:
  - Restricting to patients who met the complete KD criteria during admission
  - Excluding patients who met the complete KD criteria during admission

- Excluding patients who received additional therapies after the first day of treatment
- Removing single covariates from both covariate balancing and treatment effect estimation in leave-one-out analyses
- Post-hoc sensitivity and subgroup analyses for secondary outcomes (main outcome in brackets)
  - No improvement by day 3 (Secondary outcome 1, no improvement by day 2)
  - Escalation in therapy from day 2 onwards (secondary outcome 2, failure/escalation in therapy from any point after treatment initiation)
  - Escalation in therapy excluding patients from Low and lower-middle income countries (secondary outcome 2)
  - Fever from day 3 onwards (Secondary outcome 4, fever from day 2 onwards)
  - Fever from day 2 onwards, restricting to patients meeting complete KD criteria (secondary outcome 4)
  - Increase in level of support excluding patients from Low and lower-middle income countries (secondary outcome 5)
  - Increase in level of support, restricting to patients with no support (inotropes or ventilation) at baseline (secondary outcome 5)
  - CAA at discharge, restricting to patients with no CAA at baseline (secondary outcome 6)
  - CAA at discharge, restricting to patients meeting complete KD criteria (secondary outcome 6)
  - CAA at discharge, excluding patients meeting complete KD criteria (secondary outcome 6)
  - LVD from day 1 onwards (Secondary outcome 7, LVD From day 2 onwards)

#### Baseline comparison of treatment groups

Blood results, the proportion of patients ventilated and on inotropes, and clinical features of Kawasaki disease were compared across treatment groups at the point of starting the first immunomodulator treatment, or the day of admission for patients who did not receive immunomodulatory treatment.

### Supplementary tables

Table S1: Details of additional treatments given by primary treatment group

Other immunomodulatory treatments include: cytokine adsorber (CytoSorb), granulocyte colony stimulating factor, colchicine, mesenchymal stem cells, convalescent plasma, cyclophosphamide, plasmapheresis and hydroxychloroquine. Further days of glucocorticoids in patients receiving glucocorticoids as part of primary therapy is not considered as additional treatment.

Abbreviations: IVIG: Intravenous immunoglobulin; IL1: Interleukin-1; IL6: Interleukin-6; TNF: Tumour necrosis factor

	Number of patients Numbers receiving additional therapie							al therapies		
Primary Immunomodulatory Therapy	Total	No additional treatment	Additional treatments (%)	Further IVIG	Glucocorticoids	Anti- IL1	Anti- IL6	Anti- TNF	Ciclosporin	Other Immunomodulators
IVIG	680	262	468 (68.2%)	216	381	28	23	21	2	2
Glucocorticoids	487	234	253 (52.0%)	230	-	16	25	9	1	2
IVIG+G	698	462	236 (33.8%)	185	-	40	31	13	0	3

# Table S2: Unabridged demographic information, clinical features, and blood results for all patients included in the analysis

	Everyone (N=2009)	IVIG (N=680)	Glucocorticoids (N=487)	IVIG and Glucocorticoids (N=698)	Other (N=59)	No treatment (N=85)
<sup>+</sup> Age	8.0 [4.2 - 11]	6.8 [3.6 - 10]	8.8 [5.1 - 12]	8.4 [4.5 - 11]	11 [6.1 - 13]	7.3 [3.3 - 12]
<sup>^</sup> Proportion male	1191 (59.3%)	416 (61.2%)	288 (59.1%)	410 (58.7%)	44 (74.6%)	33 (38.8%)
<sup>^</sup> Overweight (age-adjusted z score ≥ 2)	299 (14.9%)	91 (13.4%)	70 (14.4%)	120 (17.2%)	10 (16.9%)	8 (9.41%)
^Ethnicity						
White	825 (41.1%)	290 (42.6%)	210 (43.1%)	272 (39.0%)	27 (45.8%)	26 (30.6%)
Latino	518 (25.8%)	161 (23.7%)	94 (19.3%)	222 (31.8%)	9 (15.3%)	32 (37.6%)
Black	212 (10.6%)	81 (11.9%)	34 (6.98%)	75 (10.7%)	13 (22.0%)	9 (10.6%)
Asian	131 (6.52%)	55 (8.09%)	36 (7.39%)	30 (4.30%)	4 (6.78%)	6 (7.06%)
Other or not known	323 (16.1%)	93 (13.7%)	113 (23.2%)	99 (14.2%)	6 (10.2%)	12 (14.1%)
<sup>^</sup> Significant comorbidity	108 (5.38%)	30 (4.41%)	32 (6.57%)	33 (4.73%)	4 (6.78%)	9 (10.6%)
<sup>^</sup> Home country economic status						
High-income economies	1186 (59.0%)	485 (71.3%)	224 (46.0%)	380 (54.4%)	48 (81.4%)	49 (57.6%)
Upper-middle income economies	710 (35.3%)	181 (26.6%)	197 (40.5%)	287 (41.1%)	10 (16.9%)	35 (41.2%)
Lower-middle income economies	113 (5.62%)	14 (2.06%)	66 (13.6%)	31 (4.44%)	1 (1.69%)	1 (1.18%)
<sup>^</sup> SARS-CoV-2 PCR positive						
Yes	415 (20.8%)	131 (19.4%)	97 (20.0%)	148 (21.4%)	13 (22.0%)	26 (31.7%)
Tested but negative	1397 (70.1%)	484 (71.7%)	349 (71.8%)	473 (68.5%)	44 (74.6%)	47 (57.3%)
Not tested	181 (9.08%)	60 (8.89%)	40 (8.23%)	70 (10.1%)	2 (3.39%)	9 (11.0%)
^SARS-CoV-2 Ab positive						
Yes	1321 (66.5%)	412 (61.2%)	344 (71.4%)	492 (71.6%)	43 (72.9%)	30 (35.3%)
Tested but negative	259 (13.0%)	126 (18.7%)	41 (8.51%)	65 (9.46%)	10 (16.9%)	17 (20.0%)
Not tested	406 (20.4%)	135 (20.1%)	97 (20.1%)	130 (18.9%)	6 (10.2%)	38 (44.7%)
^At admission level of care						
No support	1100 (54.8%)	434 (63.8%)	243 (49.9%)	330 (47.3%)	22 (37.3%)	71 (83.5%)
Oxygen	203 (10.1%)	58 (8.53%)	57 (11.7%)	79 (11.3%)	5 (8.47%)	4 (4.71%)
Inotropes	347 (17.3%)	68 (10.0%)	109 (22.4%)	156 (22.3%)	13 (22.0%)	1 (1.18%)
Ventilation	30 (1.49%)	12 (1.76%)	1 (0.205%)	13 (1.86%)	1 (1.69%)	3 (3.53%)
Inotropes and ventilation or ECMO	158 (7.86%)	37 (5.44%)	17 (3.49%)	83 (11.9%)	15 (25.4%)	6 (7.06%)
<sup>^</sup> Clinical features on admission						
Fever	1863 (92.7%)	653 (96.0%)	439 (90.1%)	649 (93.0%)	52 (88.1%)	70 (82.4%)
Sore throat	464 (25.5%)	159 (26.5%)	104 (22.9%)	175 (27.0%)	11 (21.6%)	15 (21.1%)
Cough	404 (21.1%)	125 (19.4%)	120 (25.3%)	131 (19.6%)	16 (30.8%)	12 (16.0%)
Respiratory distress	258 (13.3%)	70 (10.9%)	57 (11.9%)	112 (16.4%)	13 (23.6%)	6 (7.59%)
Abdominal pain	1211 (63.2%)	408 (63.9%)	289 (62.3%)	438 (64.8%)	37 (63.8%)	39 (48.1%)
Diarrhea	882 (44.8%)	290 (43.9%)	195 (40.6%)	340 (49.4%)	23 (39.7%)	34 (41.5%)
Vomiting	1057 (54.0%)	330 (50.6%)	251 (52.3%)	408 (59.2%)	34 (60.7%)	34 (42.5%)
Headache	592 (32.8%)	199 (34.1%)	155 (35.0%)	203 (31.4%)	21 (38.9%)	14 (18.4%)
Encephalopathy	74 (3.94%)	15 (2.37%)	21 (4.67%)	30 (4.49%)	6 (11.3%)	2 (2.63%)
Irritability	355 (18.8%)	127 (20.2%)	69 (14.9%)	135 (20.2%)	10 (18.5%)	14 (18.4%)
	055 (54.5%)	211 (33.3%)	100 (40.1%)	215 (52.1%)	23 (41.0%)	20 (20.7%)
Kawasaki Disease features during admission	4000 (05 00())	404 (74.000)	000 (00 00()	444 (00.00()	05 (50 00()	10 (17 10)
Rasn	1306 (65.0%)	484 (71.2%)	306 (62.8%)	441 (03.2%)	35 (59.3%)	40 (47.1%)
Conjuctival injection	1007 (54.1%)	420 (01.0%)	241 (49.5%)	379 (34.3%)	20 (47.5%)	19 (22.4%)
Edema or enthema of extremities	753 (37 5%)	271 (39.9%)	270 (33.4%)	281 (40.3%)	27 (45.6%)	21 (24.7%)
Skin peeling	245 (12.2%)	96 (14 1%)	55 (11.3%)	87 (12.5%)	4 (6 78%)	3 (3 53%)
Lymphadenopathy	675 (33.6%)	269 (39 6%)	137 (28 1%)	228 (32 7%)	22 (37 3%)	19 (22 4%)
BCG reactivity	27 (1.34%)	11 (1.62%)	0 (0%)	16 (2.29%)	0 (0%)	0 (0%)
<sup>+</sup> Blood results on admission	()		- ()		- ( /	- ()
WBC (10^9/L)	10 [7 1 - 15]	10 [7 0 - 15]	10 [7 3 - 15]	10 [7 2 - 15]	94[56-13]	11 [6 4 - 15]
Neutrophils (10^9/L)	7.9 [5.2 - 12]	7.8 [5.0 - 11]	7.9 [5.1 - 12]	7.9 [5.4 - 12]	7.3 [4.5 - 10]	7.1 [3.7 - 10]
Lymphocytes (10^9/L)	1.2 [0.70 - 2.0]	1.3 [0.76 - 2.2]	1.2 [0.70 - 1.8]	1.1 [0.66 - 1.9]	0.86 [0.52 - 1.6]	1.8 [1.1 - 2.9]
Hemoalobin (a/L)	120 [100 - 130]	120 [100 - 120]	120 [110 - 130]	110 [100 - 120]	110 [100 - 120]	120 [110 - 130]
Platelets (10^9/L)	180 [120 - 270]	190 [130 - 290]	170 [120 - 260]	170 [120 - 240]	160 [100 - 240]	240 [160 - 330]
PT (sec)	15 [13 - 17]	15 [13 - 17]	15 [13 - 17]	15 [13 - 16]	15 [14 - 17]	14 [13 - 16]
APTT (sec)	32 [27 - 38]	33 [28 - 38]	32 [27 - 37]	32 [27 - 37]	34 [29 - 37]	31 [27 - 37]
Fibrinogen (g/L)	5.5 [4.3 - 6.7]	5.5 [4.4 - 6.5]	5.5 [4.4 - 6.6]	5.4 [4.3 - 6.8]	5.7 [4.4 - 6.9]	4.7 [3.0 - 6.4]
D Dimer (ng/mL)	2700 [1400 - 4700]	2500 [1200 - 4400]	2600 [1300 - 4500]	2900 [1500 - 5000]	2900 [2000 - 5600]	1800 [780 - 4000]
Troponin (ng/L)	25 [6.1 - 83]	13 [5.0 - 43]	31 [9.8 - 100]	40 [10 - 110]	48 [10 - 270]	10 [2.0 - 38]
BNP (ng/L)			-			
CRP (mg/L)	150 [85 - 220]	150 [85 - 210]	160 [75 - 220]	160 [90 - 230]	180 [97 - 280]	85 [23 - 180]
Ferritin (ug/L)	440 [230 - 860]	370 [210 - 650]	480 [260 - 970]	520 [260 - 960]	560 [340 - 1700]	280 [140 - 460]
LDH (U/L)	320 [250 - 430]	320 [250 - 420]	310 [260 - 410]	320 [250 - 440]	290 [260 - 370]	350 [270 - 490]
Creatinine (umol/L)	47 [35 - 65]	42 [32 - 56]	53 [42 - 70]	50 [36 - 69]	54 [40 - 72]	46 [30 - 57]
ALT (U/L)	32 [19 - 57]	28 [16 - 48]	34 [19 - 64]	35 [21 - 63]	43 [20 - 76]	28 [15 - 49]
Albumin (g/L)	32 [28 - 37]	34 [28 - 39]	32 [27 - 36]	32 [27 - 36]	32 [27 - 36]	35 [30 - 41]

Descriptive table of demographic features, clinical features and blood markers on admission, and Kawasaki Disease features during admission. Patients were divided by treatment arm on day 0 (IVIG alone, glucocorticoid alone, IVIG+Glucocorticoid, no treatment, and other (any other treatment combination including biologics)). SARS-CoV-2 PCR data refer to tests taken during admission. Missing data are given as raw values and (%) where applicable.

Abbreviations: Ab: Antibody; ALT: alanine aminotransferase; APTT: activated partial thromboplastin time; BCG: Bacillus Calmette–Guérin; BNP: brain natriuretic peptide; CRP: C-reactive protein; ECMO: extracorporeal membrane oxygenation; KD: Kawasaki Disease; LDH: lactate dehydrogenase; PCR: polymerase chain reaction; PT: prothrombin time, WBC: white blood cell count. Table S3: Demographic information, clinical features, and blood results for all patients included in the analysis, and subgroups meeting specific criteria

	Clinician dispersed MIS-C matched on WHO criteria				All patients with clinician diagnosed MIS-C			
	Overall (N=2009)	MIS-C (full WHO criteria) (N=1602)	MIS-C with bacteremia/TSS (N=26)	MIS-C missing 1 criterion (N=284)	MIS-C missing >1 criteria (N=97)	KD (N=629)	Atypical KD (N=682)	Not KD (N=698)
*Age (years)	8.0 [4.2 - 11]	8.2 [4.5 - 11]	7.9 [3.2 - 11]	7.8 [3.8 - 12]	4.7 [2.0 - 9.0]	6.4 [3.4 - 9.7]	8.8 [4.8 - 12]	8.8 [4.6 - 13]
Proportion male	1191 (59.3%)	962 (60.0%)	11 (42.3%)	170 (59.9%)	48 (49.5%)	377 (59.9%)	397 (58.2%)	417 (59.7%)
Weight (age adjusted z ecore > 2)	299 (14 9%)	257 (16.0%)	3 (11 5%)	32 (11.3%)	7 (7 22%)	77 (12.2%)	103 (15 1%)	119 (17 0%)
Activation (age-aujusted 2 score 2 2)	200 (14.070)	201 (10.070)	0 (11.070)	02 (11.070)	1 (1.2270)	11 (12.270)	100 (10.1%)	110 (11.0.0)
Ethnicity	005 (44 49/)	CCD (44 70()	40 (20 59/)	404 (20 00)	42 (44 20/)	274 (42 69()	202 (44 50/)	200 (20 49/)
Lating	610 (25 99/ )	000 (41.7%)	TU (30.5%) 5 (10.2%)	104 (30.0%)	43 (44.3%)	274 (43.0%)	203 (41.3%)	200 (30.4%)
Black	313 (23.6%)	404 (23.276)	7 (26.0%)	22 (41 28()	29 (29.9%)	47 (7 47%)	93 (13.3%)	210 (31.2%)
Asian	212 (10.0%)	104 (10.2%)	1 (20.9%)	32 (11.3%)	9 (9.20%)	47 (7.4770)	49 (7.04%)	02 (11.7%) 27 (E 20%)
Other or not known	323 (16 1%)	265 (16 5%)	3 (11 5%)	47 (16 5%)	8 (8 25%)	95 (15 1%)	135 (10.8%)	93 (13 3%)
	100 (E 200/ )	74 (4 60%)	3 (11.576)	47 (10.5%)	11 (11 29/)	30 (13.170)	100 (19.0%)	60 (10.076)
Significant comorbidity	100 (5.30%)	74 (4.0276)	3 (11.5%)	20 (7.04%)	11 (11.3%)	20 (3.10%)	20 (3.01%)	02 (0.0076)
<sup>^</sup> Home country economic status								
High-income economies	1186 (59.0%)	930 (58.1%)	18 (69.2%)	183 (64.4%)	55 (56.7%)	347 (55.2%)	444 (65.1%)	395 (56.6%)
Upper-middle income economies	710 (35.3%)	574 (35.8%)	5 (19.2%)	91 (32.0%)	40 (41.2%)	230 (36.6%)	206 (30.2%)	274 (39.3%)
Lower-middle income economies	113 (5.62%)	98 (6.12%)	3 (11.5%)	10 (3.52%)	2 (2.06%)	52 (8.27%)	32 (4.69%)	29 (4.15%)
<sup>^</sup> SARS-CoV-2 PCR positive								
Yes	415 (20.8%)	337 (21.2%)	5 (19.2%)	44 (15.7%)	29 (30.9%)	108 (17.3%)	120 (17.7%)	187 (27.1%)
Tested but negative	1397 (70.1%)	1110 (69.7%)	18 (69.2%)	212 (75.4%)	57 (60.6%)	464 (74.2%)	490 (72.4%)	443 (64.1%)
Not tested	181 (9.08%)	145 (9.11%)	3 (11.5%)	25 (8.90%)	8 (8.51%)	53 (8.48%)	67 (9.90%)	61 (8.83%)
^SARS-CoV-2 Ab positive								
Yes	1321 (66.5%)	1219 (76.8%)	21 (87.5%)	58 (20.8%)	23 (24.2%)	436 (70.7%)	489 (72.3%)	396 (57.1%)
Tested but negative	259 (13.0%)	135 (8.50%)	1 (4.17%)	101 (36.2%)	22 (23.2%)	80 (13.0%)	81 (12.0%)	98 (14.1%)
Not tested	406 (20.4%)	234 (14.7%)	2 (8.33%)	120 (43.0%)	50 (52.6%)	101 (16.4%)	106 (15.7%)	199 (28.7%)
<sup>^</sup> Baseline level of care								
No support	1100 (54.8%)	857 (53.5%)	11 (42.3%)	163 (57,4%)	69 (71,1%)	369 (58,7%)	376 (55,1%)	355 (50.9%)
Oxygen	203 (10.1%)	174 (10.9%)	3 (11.5%)	21 (7.39%)	5 (5.15%)	70 (11.1%)	54 (7.92%)	79 (11.3%)
Inotropes	347 (17.3%)	307 (19.2%)	7 (26.9%)	32 (11.3%)	1 (1.03%)	87 (13.8%)	150 (22.0%)	110 (15.8%)
Ventilation	30 (1.49%)	20 (1.25%)	0 (0%)	6 (2.11%)	4 (4.12%)	11 (1.75%)	9 (1.32%)	10 (1.43%)
Inotropes and ventilation or ECMO	158 (7.86%)	125 (7.80%)	2 (7.69%)	29 (10.2%)	2 (2.06%)	31 (4.93%)	50 (7.33%)	77 (11.0%)
<sup>^</sup> Clinical features on admission								
Fever	1863 (92.7%)	1526 (95.3%)	24 (92.3%)	243 (85.6%)	70 (72 2%)	605 (96 2%)	656 (96 2%)	602 (86 2%)
Sore throat	464 (25.5%)	378 (25.6%)	10 (40 0%)	61 (25 7%)	15 (18 1%)	171 (30.3%)	166 (26.5%)	127 (20.1%)
Cough	404 (21.1%)	316 (20.5%)	7 (28.0%)	57 (22 1%)	24 (27.6%)	127 (20.9%)	125 (19.1%)	152 (23.2%)
Respiratory distress	258 (13.3%)	211 (13.5%)	4 (16.0%)	37 (13.9%)	6 (6 74%)	72 (11 7%)	77 (11 7%)	109 (16.4%)
Abdominal pain	1211 (63.2%)	1044 (67.4%)	16 (66 7%)	136 (52.9%)	15 (17.4%)	371 (62.5%)	428 (65 5%)	412 (61 5%)
Diarrhea	882 (44.8%)	749 (47.3%)	16 (64 0%)	107 (39.6%)	10 (11 1%)	247 (40.2%)	319 (47.6%)	316 (46.3%)
Vomiting	1057 (54.0%)	892 (56.7%)	14 (56.0%)	139 (51.5%)	12 (13.5%)	322 (52.5%)	380 (56.7%)	355 (52.7%)
Headache	592 (32.8%)	502 (34.5%)	6 (30.0%)	72 (29.3%)	12 (14.5%)	194 (35.1%)	201 (32.8%)	197 (30.9%)
Encephalopathy	74 (3.94%)	60 (3.98%)	0 (0%)	9 (3.47%)	5 (5.56%)	23 (3.85%)	21 (3.33%)	30 (4.60%)
Irritability	355 (18.8%)	290 (19.0%)	4 (18.2%)	46 (18.2%)	15 (16.5%)	165 (27.4%)	104 (16.2%)	86 (13.3%)
Lethargy	655 (34 5%)	545 (35.6%)	11 (47.8%)	86 (33.6%)	13 (15.1%)	226 (37.4%)	236 (37.3%)	193 (29.3%)
*Kawasaki Disease features during admissi	00							
Rash	1306 (65.0%)	1077 (67.2%)	14 (53.8%)	178 (62 7%)	37 (38.1%)	609 (96.8%)	475 (69 6%)	222 (31.8%)
Mucocutaneous changes	1087 (54 1%)	909 (56 7%)	12 (46 2%)	138 (48 6%)	28 (28 9%)	500 (05 2%)	372 (54 5%)	116 (16 6%)
Conjuctival injection	1235 (61.5%)	1033 (64 5%)	13 (50.0%)	152 (53 5%)	37 (38 1%)	598 (95.1%)	465 (68 2%)	172 (24 6%)
Edema or erythema of extremities	753 (37 5%)	645 (40 3%)	6 (23 1%)	78 (27 5%)	24 (24 7%)	459 (73.0%)	210 (30.8%)	84 (12 0%)
Skin peeling	245 (12 2%)	193 (12 0%)	5 (10 2%)	37 (13.0%)	10 (10 3%)	165 (26 2%)	58 (8 50%)	22 (3 15%)
Lymphadenonathy	675 (33.6%)	561 (35.0%)	6 (23.1%)	84 (29.6%)	24 (24 7%)	420 (66.8%)	178 (26 1%)	77 (11.0%)
BCG reactivity	27 (1 34%)	18 (1 12%)	1 (3.85%)	7 (2 46%)	1 (1 03%)	20 (3 18%)	4 (0 587%)	3 (0.430%)
1Dianda en adminaian	21 (1.0410)	10 (1.12.10)	(0.0070)	(a.4070)	(1.0070)	20 (0.1070)	4 (0.001 /0)	0 (0.40070)
MRC (1000/L)	10.17.1 151	10 [7 1 15]	1216 4 161	11 [7 2 15]	0.1 (6.1 . 15)	10.17.0 151	10 [7.4 14]	10 (6 7 15)
Neutrophile (10/0/L)	70[50 40]	7.0 [5.2 42]	10 [4.4 - 10]	7.0 (5.0. 11)	9.1[0.1-13]	0 [7.0 - 13]	70[54 11]	76[47 42]
Neutrophils (10-9/L)	1.9 [5.2 - 12]	1.9 [5.2 - 12]	10 [4.4 - 11]	1.9[5.0 - 11]	1.910.00 3.31	0.0 [0.0 - 11]	1.9 [5.4 - 11]	1.0 [4.7 - 12]
Lymphocytes (10-9/L)	1.2 [0.70 - 2.0]	1.1 [0.09 - 1.9]	110 [100 - 2.4]	1.4 [0.01 - 2.0]	1.0 [0.99 - 3.2]	1.2 [0.70 - 2.1]	1.1 [0.00 - 1.7]	1.3 [0.76 - 2.2]
Platelets (1000/L)	120 [100 - 130]	120 [100 - 130]	210 [100 - 110]	210 [110 - 130]	200 [100 - 120]	120 [100 - 120]	170 [100 - 150]	200 [140 - 200]
Platelets (10"9/L)	160 [120 - 270]	170 [120 - 250]	210 [170 - 280]	210 [140 - 310]	290 [180 - 390]	170 [120 - 250]	170 [120 - 250]	200 [140 - 290]
APTT (sec)	32 [27 20]	32 [20 20]	33 [20 42]	31 [26 - 27]	30 [26 - 25]	33 [39 39]	32 [20 27]	31 [27 27]
Fibringen (all.)	55[43.67]	55 [4.4 6.6]	63[37 74]	5542.60	5 1 [4 5 6 4]	54 [4 3 6 47	55 [4 4 6 7]	55[42 69]
D Dimor (ng/ml.)	0.0 [4.0 - 0.7] 2700 [1400 - 4700]	3700 [4.4 - 0.0]	2400 [120 2800]	3500 [4:2 - 0:8]	1500 (620 - 2600)	0.4 [4.3 - 0.4] 2800 [1700 _ E000]	3800 [4.4 - 0.7]	2400 [1200 4200]
Tropopio (ng/l )	2100 [1400 - 4700]	2700 [1400 - 4800]	2400 [1300 - 3800]	2000 [1300 - 4400]	67 [2.1 12]	2000 [1700 - 5000]	2000 [1000 - 4400]	2400 [1200 - 4000]
PND (pg/L)	20 [0.1 - 00] 100 [47 - 700]	21 [1.0 - 00]	40 [10 - 00]	10 [0.0 - 09]	0.7 [3.1 - 12]	10 [0.0 - 00]	20 [9.0 - 90]	29 [0.0 - 110]
CPD (mg/L)	150 [47 - 720]	210 [47 - 730]	240 [81 - 600]	140 [45 - 500]	66 [17 - 150]	150 [36 - 050]	160 [08 - 700]	140 [62 - 030]
Forritin (unit)	100 [80 - 220]	100 [90 - 230]	190 [07 - 280] 610 [220 - 1100]	140 [38 - 200]	170 [11 - 100]	100 [00 - 210]	100 [90 - 230]	140 [02 - 220]
Fernari (0g/L)	440 [200 - 000]	400 [200 - 000]	390 (240 - 1100)	210 [140 - 010]	170 [110 - 300]	400 [200 - 680]	440 [200 - 900]	430 [100 - 020]
Creatining (umpl/L)	320 [230 - 430] 47 [25 - 65]	49 [26 65]	50 [310 - 410]	46 [21 62]	42 [270 - 470]	44 [22 57]	49 [26 66]	51 [27 70]
	47 [33 - 03]	40 [30 - 03]	33 [34 66]	40 [31 - 02]	42 [27 - 09] 07 [44 - 44]	44 [33 - 37]	40 [00 - 00]	30 [17 - 70]
Albumin (all.)	32 [19 - 30]	32 [19 - 37]	33 [21 - 00]	32 [17 - 02]	27 [14 - 41]	33 [20 - 03]	32 [10 - 33]	30[17 - 57]
Albumin (g/L)	32 [20 - 31]	32 [21 - 31]	32 [21 - 31]	32 [20 - 31]	or [00 - 41]	32 [21 - 31]	32 [20 - 37]	33 [27 - 30]

Descriptive table of blood markers, demographic & clinical features on admission, and Kawasaki Disease features during admission. All patients included in the analysis were classified as "Clinician diagnosed MIS-C". This population was subdivided by those who met the full WHO MIS-C criteria, those who met full WHO MIS-C criteria with presence of bacteremia or toxic shock syndrome, and those who were missing one or more mandatory criteria (fever >3 days; 2 of more of rash/non-purulent conjunctivitis, or mucocutaneous signs/hypotension or shock/features of myocardial dysfunction/evidence of coagulopathy/acute gastrointestinal symptoms; elevated markers of inflammation; evidence of Covid-19). All "Clinician diagnosed MIS-C" cases were further divided by patients that met the definition of Kawasaki Disease as set out by the American Heart Association<sup>8</sup> (persistent fever, and at least 4 of the 5 following mucocutaneous features: erythema and cracking lips; strawberry tongue, and/or erythema of oral and pharyngeal mucosa; bilateral non-purulent conjunctivitis; rash; erythema and edema of the hands and feet and/or skin peeling; and lymphadenopathy). Patients with coronary artery aneurysms were also classified as Kawasaki Disease, even if they did not have at least 4

mucocutaneous features. Atypical KD was defined as patients with persistent fever, CRP >30, and meeting at least 2 or 3 mucocutaneous features. SARSCoV-2 PCR data refer to tests taken during admission.

Abbreviations: ALT: alanine aminotransferase; APTT: activated partial thromboplastin time; BCG: Bacillus Calmette–Guérin; BNP: brain natriuretic peptide; KD: Kawasaki Disease; LDH: lactate dehydrogenase; PCR: polymerase chain reaction; PT: prothrombin time, TSS: toxic shock syndrome; WBC: white blood cell count.

## Table S4: Distribution of patients meeting WHO criteria subdivided by Kawasaki Disease status, age, and primary treatment

Table showing patients matched on WHO MIS-C criteria and divided by whether they met the definition of Kawasaki Disease set out by the American Heart Association during admission (persistent fever, and at least 4 of the 5 following mucocutaneous features: erythema and cracking lips; strawberry tongue, and/or erythema of oral and pharyngeal mucosa; bilateral non-purulent conjunctivitis; rash; erythema and edema of the hands and feet and/or skin peeling; and lymphadenopathy). Patients with coronary artery aneurysms were also classified as Kawasaki Disease, even if they did not have at least 4 mucocutaneous features. Atypical KD was defined as patients with persistent fever, CRP >30, and meeting at least 2 or 3 mucocutaneous features. These columns are compared with the primary treatments received on day 0, and whether they were under 6 or over 6. Values given as raw values and (%).

Abbreviations: KD: Kawasaki Disease; TSS: toxic shock syndrome

	MIS-C (full WHO criteria)		MIS-C with bacteremia		MIS-	MIS-C missing 1 criterion		MIS-C missing >1 criteria		All patients					
	KD (N=544)	Atypical KD (N=596)	Not KD (N=462)	KD (N=6)	Atypical KD (N=7)	Not KD (N=13)	KD (N=63)	Atypical KD (N=66)	Not KD (N=155)	KD (N=16)	Atypical KD (N=13)	Not KD (N=68)	KD (N=629)	Atypical KD (N=682)	Not KD (N=698)
Age (years)															
Over 6	298 (54.8%)	432 (72.5%)	322 (69.7%)	3 (50.0%)	4 (57.1%)	9 (69.2%)	29 (46.0%)	33 (50.0%)	110 (71.0%)	4 (25.0%)	2 (15.4%)	32 (47.1%)	334 (53.1%)	471 (69.1%)	473 (67.8%)
Under 6	246 (45.2%)	164 (27.5%)	140 (30.3%)	3 (50.0%)	3 (42.9%)	4 (30.8%)	34 (54.0%)	33 (50.0%)	45 (29.0%)	12 (75.0%)	11 (84.6%)	36 (52.9%)	295 (46.9%)	211 (30.9%)	225 (32.2%)
First immunomodulator given															
IVIG	210 (38.6%)	187 (31.4%)	127 (27.5%)	3 (50.0%)	3 (42.9%)	4 (30.8%)	40 (63.5%)	36 (54.5%)	32 (20.6%)	12 (75.0%)	9 (69.2%)	17 (25.0%)	265 (42.1%)	235 (34.5%)	180 (25.8%)
Glucocorticoids	110 (20.2%)	155 (26.0%)	134 (29.0%)	0 (0%)	2 (28.6%)	5 (38.5%)	7 (11.1%)	8 (12.1%)	43 (27.7%)	2 (12.5%)	1 (7.69%)	20 (29.4%)	119 (18.9%)	166 (24.3%)	202 (28.9%)
IVIG and Glucocorticoids	208 (38.2%)	221 (37.1%)	167 (36.1%)	2 (33.3%)	2 (28.6%)	2 (15.4%)	13 (20.6%)	16 (24.2%)	58 (37.4%)	2 (12.5%)	0 (0%)	7 (10.3%)	225 (35.8%)	239 (35.0%)	234 (33.5%)
Other	9 (1.65%)	19 (3.19%)	16 (3.46%)	1 (16.7%)	0 (0%)	1 (7.69%)	2 (3.17%)	3 (4.55%)	6 (3.87%)	0 (0%)	0 (0%)	2 (2.94%)	12 (1.91%)	22 (3.23%)	25 (3.58%)
No treatment	7 (1.29%)	14 (2.35%)	18 (3.90%)	0 (0%)	0 (0%)	1 (7.69%)	1 (1.59%)	3 (4.55%)	16 (10.3%)	0 (0%)	3 (23.1%)	22 (32.4%)	8 (1.27%)	20 (2.93%)	57 (8.17%)

## Table S5A: Details for first primary outcome - inotropes/ventilation from day 2 or death

Table showing the total number of patients included for analysis of the first primary outcome (inotropes/ventilation from day 2 or death) after exclusions for missing baseline covariates. Crude numbers are shown in the "Raw outcomes" as the numerator/denominator for those providing the outcome, with the proportion in parentheses. Inverse probability of treatment weighted proportions of the outcome are also shown. Adjusted Odds ratios and 95% confidence intervals are provided for primary treatment groups, with IVIG as the reference treatment. All four p-values calculated for the two primary outcomes and two primary comparisons are reported adjusted for multiple hypothesis testing. The E-value for the strength of unmeasured confounding necessary to move a point estimate to the null value is shown for primary outcomes.

Primary Therapy	Number of patients	Missing outcome	Raw outcomes	Weighted % with outcome	Odds ratio (relative to IVIG)	Confidence interval (95%)	Adj. p- value	E- value
IVIG	579	11	103/568 (18.1%)	24.0%	-	-	-	-
Glucocorticoid	382	11	81/371 (21.8%)	23.5%	0.93	0.58 - 1.47	1.00	1.24
IVIG and Glucocorticoid	625	17	187/608 (30.8%)	25.5%	1.09	0.75 - 1.58	1.00	1.26

## Table S5B: Details for second primary outcome – Time-to-improvement in ordinal scale of clinical severity

Table showing the total number of patients included for analysis of the second primary outcome (time-toimprovement in ordinal scale of clinical severity) after exclusions for missing baseline covariates. The number of patients who improved and right-censored are reported. Those who did not improve or where the outcome could not be calculated are reported as missing this outcome. Adjusted average hazard ratios and 95% confidence intervals are provided for primary treatment groups, with IVIG as the reference treatment. All four p-values calculated for the two primary outcomes and two primary comparisons are reported adjusted for multiple hypothesis testing. The E-value for the strength of unmeasured confounding necessary to move a point estimate to the null value is shown for primary outcomes.

Primary Therapy	Number of patients	Improved (censored)	Missing outcome	Average Hazard Ratio (relative to IVIG)	Confidence interval (95%)	Adj. p- value	E-value
IVIG	579	358 (207)	14	-	-	-	-
Glucocorticoid	382	240 (133)	9	0.84	0.70 - 1.00	0.22	1.51
IVIG and Glucocorticoid	625	434 (174)	17	1.04	0.91 - 1.20	1.00	1.21

### Table S5C: Raw and weighted dichotomous secondary outcomes by primary

#### treatment group

Table showing the total number of patients included for each dichotomous secondary outcome, including planned and post-hoc sensitivity and subgroup analyses. The total number of patients included for each separate analysis are shown after exclusions for missing baseline covariates and subgrouping. Crude numbers are shown in the "Raw outcomes" column as the numerator/denominator for those providing the outcome and (%). Inverse probability of treatment weighted proportions of the outcomes are also shown. \*post-hoc analysis. \*\*Planned analysis

Secondary Outcome	Primary Therapy	Number of patients after exclusions	Missing outcome	Raw outcomes	Weighted % with outcome
	IVIG	579	16	5/563 (0.9%)	1.4%
Death	Glucocorticoid	382	13	6/369 (1.6%)	2.4%
	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	625	24	7/601 (1.2%)	0.9%
	IVIG	579	9	89/570 (15.6%)	21.5%
Inotropes from day	Glucocorticoid	382	5	76/377 (20.2%)	22.0%
-	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	625	7	164/618 (26.5%)	21.9%
	IVIG	579	7	49/572 (8.6%)	10.0%
Ventilation from day 2	Glucocorticoid	382	1	29/381 (7.6%)	11.3%
	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	625	1	93/624 (14.9%)	11.4%
	IVIG	579	14	409/565 (72.4%)	70.5%
No improvement by day 2	Glucocorticoid	382	5	268/377 (71.1%)	73.1%
	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	625	7	414/618 (67%)	67.8%
	IVIG	579	18	275/561 (49%)	48.8%
*No improvement by day 3	Glucocorticoid	382	7	185/375 (49.3%)	49.9%
	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	625	11	284/614 (46.3%)	46.0%
	IVIG	579	9	334/570 (58.6%)	61.2%
Escalation of	Glucocorticoid	382	8	187/374 (50%)	52.3%
princip troatmont	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	625	15	125/610 (20.5%)	19.9%
	IVIG	579	14	169/565 (29.9%)	30.5%
*Escalation, from day 2 onwards	Glucocorticoid	382	9	102/373 (27.3%)	28.5%
	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	625	20	90/605 (14.9%)	14.3%
	IVIG	569	9	328/560 (58.6%)	61.8%
*Escalation, exclude L/LM-IC	Glucocorticoid	338	8	160/330 (48.5%)	51.4%
	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	600	15	119/585 (20.3%)	19.7%
	IVIG	579	71	228/508 (44.9%)	43.3%
Fever from day 2 onwards	Glucocorticoid	382	56	128/326 (39.3%)	38.2%
onnaide	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	625	101	151/524 (28.8%)	28.2%
	IVIG	579	106	115/473 (24.3%)	24.2%
*Fever from day 3 onwards	Glucocorticoid	382	65	87/317 (27.4%)	27.6%
	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	625	124	101/501 (20.2%)	19.2%
*Fever from day 2	IVIG	222	22	103/200 (51.5%)	50.6%
Complete KD	Glucocorticoid	87	7	42/80 (52.5%)	46.9%
criteria	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	200	27	58/173 (33.5%)	33.2%

Table S5C: Raw and weighted dichotomous secondary outcomes by primary treatment group (*continued*)

Secondary Outcome	Primary Therapy	Number of patients after exclusions	Missing outcome	Raw outcomes	Weighted % with outcome
	IVIG	579	14	65/565 (11.5%)	12.4%
Increase in level of support	Glucocorticoid	382	12	55/370 (14.9%)	14.3%
ouppoint	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	625	22	85/603 (14.1%)	13.7%
	IVIG	569	14	65/555 (11.7%)	12.9%
*Increase in support, exclude I /I M-IC	Glucocorticoid	338	12	44/326 (13.5%)	13.4%
	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	600	22	84/578 (14.5%)	14.5%
	IVIG	470	6	50/464 (10.8%)	10.8%
*Increase in support, baseline no support	Glucocorticoid	262	5	41/257 (16%)	15.3%
	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	384	11	43/373 (11.5%)	11.4%
	IVIG	415	160	21/255 (8.2%)	6.7%
Aneurysms (CAA) at	Glucocorticoid	227	83	9/144 (6.2%)	8.0%
discharge	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	492	186	20/306 (6.5%)	5.6%
	IVIG	380	150	11/230 (4.8%)	3.7%
*CAA at discharge,	Glucocorticoid	218	79	7/139 (5%)	5.2%
	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	440	171	11/269 (4.1%)	3.9%
	IVIG	148	51	4/97 (4.1%)	4.5%
*CAA at discharge, Complete KD criteria	Glucocorticoid	50	14	3/36 (8.3%)	10.9%
	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	129	51	2/78 (2.6%)	3.2%
*CAA at discharge	IVIG	261	108	16/153 (10.5%)	7.1%
exclude complete KD	Glucocorticoid	177	69	6/108 (5.6%)	8.7%
criteria	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	342	129	16/213 (7.5%)	6.2%
	IVIG	568	6	66/562 (11.7%)	13.7%
LV-dysfunction (LVD) from day 2	Glucocorticoid	363	8	47/355 (13.2%)	15.2%
	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	613	18	89/595 (15%)	12.8%
**I \/D from day 2	IVIG	437	3	66/434 (15.2%)	18.3%
baseline-troponin as	Glucocorticoid	207	4	38/203 (18.7%)	22.1%
covariate	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	455	10	102/445 (22.9%)	20.2%
	IVIG	568	3	83/565 (14.7%)	17.1%
*LVD from day 1	Glucocorticoid	363	5	61/358 (17%)	19.6%
	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	613	14	123/599 (20.5%)	18.2%

## Table S5D: Raw and weighted outcomes for subgroup and sensitivity analyses of first primary outcome by primary treatment group

Table showing the total number of patients included for each subgroup and sensitivity analysis for the first primary outcome (inotropes/ventilation from day 2, or death) including planned analyses. The total number of patients included for each separate analysis are shown after exclusions for missing baseline covariates and subgrouping. Crude numbers are shown in the "Raw outcomes" column as the numerator/denominator for those providing the outcome, and (%). Inverse probability of treatment weighted proportions of the outcomes are also shown. \*Number matched for propensity matched analysis. \*\*Outcomes in matched cohorts after removing unmatched cases.

Subgroup/Sensitivity analysis	Primary Therapy	Number of patients after exclusions	Missing outcome	Raw outcomes	Weighted % with outcome
Planned sensitivity analyses					
	IVIG	390	8	33/382 (8.6%)	14.2%
Primary-therapy on days 0 & 1	Glucocorticoid	283	13	30/270 (11.1%)	13.6%
	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	899	28	174/871 (20%)	17.0%
Propensity matched analysis:	IVIG	291*	0	63/291 (21.	7%)**
Glucocorticoids vs IVIG	Glucocorticoid	291*	0	65/291 (22.)	3%)**
Propensity matched analysis:	IVIG	487*	0	99/487 (20.3	3%)**
IVIG+G vs IVIG	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	487*	0	117/487 (24	4%)**
	IVIG	609	11	111/598 (18.6%)	24.5%
Impute CRP (median by	Glucocorticoid	428	12	94/416 (22.6%)	24.2%
treatment group)	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	662	17	193/645 (29.9%)	24.9%
Planned subgroup analyses					
Full WHO MIS-C criteria	IVIG	456	10	92/446 (20.6%)	25.4%
	Glucocorticoid	333	6	71/327 (21.7%)	22.6%
	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	552	16	165/536 (30.8%)	25.8%
	IVIG	464	10	92/454 (20.3%)	25.4%
Full WHO MIS-C criteria + bacteraemia/TSS	Glucocorticoid	337	6	72/331 (21.8%)	22.9%
Sabioracinia, 100	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	558	16	168/542 (31%)	25.9%
	IVIG	542	11	102/531 (19.2%)	24.5%
Missing up-to 1 WHO MIS-C	Glucocorticoid	368	8	79/360 (21.9%)	23.5%
ontona	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	613	17	183/596 (30.7%)	25.7%
	IVIG	569	11	101/558 (18.1%)	24.6%
Exclude Low & Lower-middle	Glucocorticoid	338	11	73/327 (22.3%)	23.2%
	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	600	17	181/583 (31%)	26.0%
	IVIG	255	5	31/250 (12.4%)	20.7%
Age < 6 years	Glucocorticoid	110	1	21/109 (19.3%)	20.5%
	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	207	5	45/202 (22.3%)	18.1%
	IVIG	233	3	49/230 (21.3%)	26.2%
Age 6-11 years	Glucocorticoid	164	4	37/160 (23.1%)	24.9%
	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	283	8	89/275 (32.4%)	27.4%
	IVIG	91	3	23/88 (26.1%)	30.7%
Age > 11 years	Glucocorticoid	95	6	20/89 (22.5%)	26.2%
	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	128	4	50/124 (40.3%)	33.2%

Table S5D: Raw and weighted outcomes for subgroup and sensitivity analyses of first primary outcome by primary treatment group (*continued*)

Subgroup/Sensitivity analysis	Primary Therapy	Number of patients after exclusions	Missing outcome	Raw outcomes	Weighted % with outcome
Planned subgroup analyses					
	IVIG	555	10	99/545 (18.2%)	24.2%
No significant comorbidities	Glucocorticoid	357	8	77/349 (22.1%)	23.9%
	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	595	16	175/579 (30.2%)	24.8%
	IVIG	202	3	20/199 (10.1%)	13.1%
Baseline CRP < 118.0	Glucocorticoid	127	3	14/124 (11.3%)	10.1%
	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	197	3	36/194 (18.6%)	13.9%
	IVIG	191	3	34/188 (18.1%)	24.5%
Baseline CRP 118.0 - 206.5	Glucocorticoid	129	4	28/125 (22.4%)	25.7%
	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	211	6	58/205 (28.3%)	23.9%
	IVIG	186	5	49/181 (27.1%)	34.0%
Baseline CRP >= 206.5	Glucocorticoid	126	4	39/122 (32%)	32.2%
	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	217	8	93/209 (44.5%)	38.4%
Post-hoc subgroup analyse	S				
	IVIG	215	0	30/215 (14%)	18.2%
Meet complete KD criteria	Glucocorticoid	87	1	16/86 (18.6%)	15.7%
	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	175	3	44/172 (25.6%)	21.9%
	IVIG	357	10	69/347 (19.9%)	25.4%
Do not meet complete KD criteria	Glucocorticoid	295	10	65/285 (22.8%)	26.1%
	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	425	14	124/411 (30.2%)	25.8%
	IVIG	263	6	19/257 (7.4%)	16.7%
Exclude changes in treatment group	Glucocorticoid	198	9	24/189 (12.7%)	15.2%
5.44	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	553	16	150/537 (27.9%)	23.6%

## Table S5E: Additional details for subgroup and sensitivity analyses of second primary outcome by primary treatment group

Table showing the total number of patients included for all sensitivity and subgroup analyses of the second primary outcome (time-to-improvement in ordinal scale of clinical severity) after exclusions for missing baseline covariates and subgrouping. The number of patients who improved and were right-censored are reported. Those who did not improve or where the outcome could not be calculated are reported as missing this outcome. \*Number matched for propensity matched analysis. \*\*Outcomes in matched cohorts after removing unmatched cases.

Subgroup/Sensitivity analysis	Primary Therapy	Number of patients after exclusions	Improved (censored)	Missing outcome
Planned sensitivity analyses				
	IVIG	390	251 (127)	12
Primary-therapy on days 0 & 1	Glucocorticoid	283	191 (82)	10
	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	899	659 (217)	23
Propensity matched analysis:	IVIG	304*	291 (13)**	0
Glucocorticoids vs ÍVIG	Glucocorticoid	304*	292 (12)**	0
Propensity matched analysis:	IVIG	495*	471 (24)**	0
IVIG+G vs IVIG	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	495*	482 (13)**	0
	IVIG	579	521 (44)	14
Two-point Time-to-Improvement	Glucocorticoid	382	349 (24)	9
	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	625	563 (45)	17
	IVIG	609	385 (210)	14
Impute CRP (median by treatment	Glucocorticoid	428	281 (134)	13
9.04P)	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	662	470 (174)	18
Planned subgroup analyses				
	IVIG	100	89 (3)	8
Requiring intensive support at baseline	Glucocorticoid	111	103 (2)	6
	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	224	214 (2)	8
	IVIG	428	222 (204)	2
Requiring no intensive support at baseline	Glucocorticoid	227	97 (130)	0
	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	332	158 (172)	2
	IVIG	456	275 (169)	12
Full WHO MIS-C criteria	Glucocorticoid	333	210 (117)	6
	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	552	385 (154)	13
	IVIG	464	280 (172)	12
Full WHO MIS-C criteria + bacteraemia/TSS	Glucocorticoid	337	213 (117)	7
	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	558	390 (155)	13
	IVIG	542	337 (191)	14
Missing up-to 1 WHO MIS-C criteria	Glucocorticoid	368	230 (130)	8
	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	613	427 (170)	16
	IVIG	569	352 (203)	14
Exclude Low & Lower-middle	Glucocorticoid	338	208 (123)	7
income coultines	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	600	416 (168)	16

# Table S5E: Additional details for subgroup and sensitivity analyses of second primary outcome by primary treatment group (*continued*)

Subgroup/Sensitivity analysis	Primary Therapy	Number of patients after exclusions	Improved (censored)	Missing outcome
Planned subgroup analyses				
	IVIG	255	149 (101)	5
Age < 6 years	Glucocorticoid	110	61 (45)	4
	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	207	127 (74)	6
	IVIG	233	144 (85)	4
Age 6-11 years	Glucocorticoid	164	108 (55)	1
	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	283	200 (73)	10
	IVIG	91	65 (21)	5
Age > 11 years	Glucocorticoid	108	71 (33)	4
	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	135	107 (27)	1
	IVIG	555	345 (197)	13
No significant comorbidities	Glucocorticoid 357		227 (123)	7
	IVIG and Glucocorticoid 595		413 (168)	14
	IVIG	202	116 (81)	5
Baseline CRP < 118.0	Glucocorticoid	127	89 (35)	3
	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	197	144 (50)	3
	IVIG	179	118 (58)	3
Baseline CRP 118.0 - 206.5	Glucocorticoid	128	74 (53)	1
	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	184	110 (70)	4
	IVIG	186	113 (67)	6
Baseline CRP >= 206.5	Glucocorticoid	126	77 (45)	4
	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	217	155 (54)	8
Post-hoc subgroup analyses				
	IVIG	215	124 (87)	4
Meet complete KD criteria	Glucocorticoid 87		46 (41)	0
	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	175	112 (57)	6
	IVIG	357	228 (119)	10
Do not meet complete KD criteria	Glucocorticoid	295	194 (92)	9
	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	425	299 (117)	9
	IVIG	263	145 (110)	8
Exclude changes in treatment	Glucocorticoid	198	113 (79)	6
9.00p	IVIG and Glucocorticoid	553	375 (166)	12

#### Table S6A: Timing of coronary artery aneurysms by primary treatment group

Table showing the numbers and % of patients with aneurysms detected at any time during admission, up to and after initiation of primary treatment, stratified by primary treatment group. We have subdivided those receiving other combinations of primary treatment into those whose primary treatment did or did not include IVIG.

Primary treatment group	Number of patients	Aneurysms at any time during admission	Aneurysms pre- treatment	Aneurysms post- treatment
IVIG	680	89/660 - 13.5% (No recorded echo 20)	37/436 - 8.5% (No recorded echo 244)	68/521 - 13.1% (No recorded echo 159)
Glucocorticoid	487	40/458 - 8.7% (No recorded echo 29)	9/241 - 3.7% (No recorded echo 246)	36/385 - 9.4% (No recorded echo 102)
IVIG and	698	88/680 - 12.9% (No	53/518 - 10.2% (No	61/507 - 12% (No recorded
Glucocorticoid		recorded echo 18)	recorded echo 180)	echo 191)
Other combination -	43	11/41 - 26.8% (No	9/33 - 27.3% (No recorded	8/37 - 21.6% (No recorded
including IVIG		recorded echo 2)	echo 10)	echo 6)
Other combination -	16	6/15 - 40% (No recorded	3/9 - 33.3% (No recorded	4/13 - 30.8% (No recorded
excluding IVIG		echo 1)	echo 7)	echo 3)
No immunomodulator	85	0/57 - 0% (No recorded	0/19 - 0% (No recorded	0/45 - 0% (No recorded
treatment		echo 28)	echo 66)	echo 40)

### Table S6B: Coronary artery aneurysm detection and resolution at any time by

#### primary treatment group

Table showing the numbers and % of patients with aneurysms detected at any time (including those where aneurysm status was reported post-discharge) and resolution at any time, stratified by primary treatment group. Only patients with aneurysms recorded on their final inpatient echocardiogram contributed additional post-discharge follow-up. Patients with aneurysms on their final inpatient echocardiogram were classified as not having follow-up if the host sites either did not provide additional follow-up data, or if the follow-up data provided was for less than 6-weeks after initiation of primary treatment. We have subdivided those receiving other combinations of primary treatment into those whose primary treatment did or did not include IVIG.

Primary treatment group	Number of patients	Aneurysms at any time	Aneurysms resolved at any time
IVIG	680	90/663 (13.6% - 17 no echo recorded)	70/76 (92.1% - 14 no follow-up data)
Glucocorticoid	487	41/460 (8.9% - 27 no echo recorded)	33/35 (94.3% - 6 no follow-up data)
IVIG and Glucocorticoid	698	88/682 (12.9% - 16 no echo recorded)	64/68 (94.1% - 20 no follow-up data)
Other combination - including IVIG	43	11/41 (26.8% - 2 no echo recorded)	10/11 (90.9% - 0 no follow-up data)
Other combination - excluding IVIG	16	6/15 (40% - 1 no echo recorded)	5/6 (83.3% - 0 no follow-up data)
No immunomodulator treatment	85	0/57 (0% - 28 no echo recorded)	-
All	2009	236/1918 (12.3% - 91 no echo recorded)	182/196 (92.9% - 40 no follow-up data)
## Table S6C: Coronary artery aneurysm resolution at 6-weeks from treatment initiation by primary treatment group

Table showing the number of patients with aneurysms detected at any time, and the number where aneurysm resolution was confirmed to be within 6-weeks of initiation of primary treatment (defined as patients with an echocardiogram before or up-to 6-weeks showing CAA resolution). Patients were defined as not being resolved within 6-weeks if they had an echocardiogram after 6-weeks demonstrating CAA. The percentage resolution by 6-weeks was calculated as the percentage of those definitely resolved by 6-weeks with the denominator as those definitely resolved by 6-weeks. Patients were defined as having unclear timings if they did not fit into these categories, and then subdivided into those with CAA resolution (but timing not clearly before 6-weeks) and those without resolution but with follow-up less than 6-weeks.

Primary treatment group	Number of CAAs	Number resolved within 6- weeks	Number not resolved within 6-weeks	Percentage resolved within 6- weeks (where outcome certain)	Number resolved, unclear timings	Number not resolved, but follow-up less than 6-weeks
IVIG	90	51	7	87.9 (51/58)	17	15
Glucocorticoid	41	22	3	88.0 (22/25)	10	6
IVIG and Glucocorticoid	88	51	5	91.1 (51/56)	11	21

## Table S6D: Coronary artery aneurysm resolution at 12-weeks from treatment initiation by primary treatment group

Table showing the number of patients with aneurysms detected at any time, and the number where aneurysm resolution was confirmed to be within 12-weeks of initiation of primary treatment (defined as patients with an echocardiogram before or up-to 12-weeks showing CAA resolution). Patients were defined as not being resolved within 12-weeks if they had an echocardiogram after 12-weeks demonstrating CAA. The percentage resolution by 12-weeks was calculated as the percentage of those definitely resolved by 12-weeks with the denominator as those definitely resolved by 12-weeks and those definitely not resolved by 12-weeks. Patients were defined as having unclear timings if they did not fit into these categories, and then subdivided into those with CAA resolution (but timing not clearly before 12-weeks) and those without resolution but with follow-up less than 12-weeks.

Primary treatment group	Number of CAAs	Number resolved within 12- weeks	Number not resolved within 12-weeks	Percentage resolved within 12-weeks (where outcome certain)	Number resolved, unclear timings	Number not resolved, but follow-up less than 12-weeks
IVIG	90	62	5	92.5 (62/67)	8	15
Glucocorticoid	41	25	2	92.6 (25/27)	8	6
IVIG and Glucocorticoid	88	58	5	92.1 (58/63)	4	21

## Table S6E: Coronary artery aneurysm incidence and resolution in patients receiving primary treatment with glucocorticoids alone

Table showing the number of patients with aneurysms detected at any time, restricted to patients whose primary treatment was with glucocorticoids alone. These have been stratified into those who did and did not receive additional treatment with IVIG at a later date (first column). We also present the number who had echocardiograms during admission, the percentage of these with CAA, and the number and percentage of those with CAA remaining on the final echocardiogram before discharge. The final three columns show the number of those with post-discharge follow-up and the number and percentage of these demonstrating resolution during follow up.

Did patients subsequently receive IVIG?	Number of patients	Had any echo during admission	Had CAA	Percentage with CAA	Had CAAs at discharge	Percentage with CAA at discharge	Has follow- up data	Resolved during follow-up	Percentage Resolved
No	257	239	17	7.1	5	2.1	15	14	93.3
Yes	230	221	24	10.9	9	4.1	20	19	95.0
Yes - before CAA detected	14	14	14	100	6	42.9	13	12	92.3
Yes - on/after CAA detected	10	10	10	100	3	30	7	7	100
Yes - no CAAs	206	197	0	0	0	0			

#### Table S7A: Maximum coronary artery aneurysm z-scores by primary treatment group

Table shows the number of patients in each z-score band separated by primary treatment group. This includes only patients who were reported to have CAA, and had at least one z-score reported. Percentages indicate the proportions within a specific treatment group.

		Maximal z-score	
Primary treatment group	2.5-5.0	5.0-10.0	>=10
IVIG	56 (77.8%)	9 (12.5%)	7 (9.7%)
Glucocorticoid	33 (89.2%)	3 (8.1%)	1 (2.7%)
IVIG and Glucocorticoid	60 (80%)	13 (17.3%)	2 (2.7%)

## Table S7B: Maximum coronary artery aneurysm z-scores by primary treatment group and age

Table reports the median z-scores [IQR] for patients separates by age band and primary therapy. Number inside the parentheses indicates total number of patients in each group with CAA and reported z-scores.

		Age band	
Primary treatment group	<6 years	6-11 years	>12 years
IVIG	3.6 [3.1-6] (37)	3 [2.7-4.3] (24)	3.2 [2.7-3.6] (11)
Glucocorticoid	3.4 [3-4.9] (11)	2.9 [2.7-3.2] (17)	2.9 [2.8-3] (9)
IVIG and Glucocorticoid	3.5 [2.8-5.1] (28)	3.6 [3.1-4.7] (28)	3.3 [2.9-3.9] (19)

### Table S8: Treatment related complications

Table shows reported inpatient drug-complications for all patients. Denominators for percentages include all patients who received the specific drug at any point during admission.

Treatment	Complication	Number of
Glucocorticoid		
	Glucocorticoid induced bypertension	23
	Hyperglycaemia	14
	Profound bradycardia	6
	Psychosis	2
	Opportunistic infection	1
	Hypothermia	1
	Gastro-oesophageal reflux	1
	Other unspecified	11
Total (% of	f natients receiving alucocorticoids)	59/1623 (3.6%)
IVIG		
	Mild reaction	2
	Anaphylaxis	2
	Hypertension	2
	Extravasation injury / skin necrosis	2
	Headache	2
	Vomiting	1
	Profound bradycardia	1
	Other unspecified	13
Tota	(% of patients receiving IVIG)	25/1658 (1.5%)
Anakinra		20/1000 (110/0)
	Opportunistic infection	1
	Profound bradycardia	1
	Superficial cutaneous skin reaction	1
	Other unspecified	1
Anticoagulant		
Antioougulunt	Significant bleeding	1
	Mild bleeding	1
	Other unspecified	2
Antimicrobials		L
Vancomycin		1
Phonoxymothylponici	Other unspecified	1
llin		1
Lopinavir / Ritonavir	Other unspecified	1
Linezolid	Other unspecified	1
Sulfamethoxazole/Trim	Other unspecified	1
ethoprim		
Cefotaxime	Other unspecified	1
ECMO		
	Cerebrovascular accident	1
Poor sedation under	paralysis	
	Hypertension	1

### Table S9A: Steroid drugs and doses for primary treatment

Table shows steroid doses by route and drug at initiation of primary treatment, for patients with primary treatment of Glucocorticoids alone or IVIG and Glucocorticoids. As described in the supplementary methods, patients receiving low-dose oral steroids alone were excluded from the glucocorticoid alone arm, and low-dose intravenous hydrocortisone was not included in the definition of primary treatment groups (see supplementary methods). Doses are presented as median raw-dose in mg/kg (IQR) and median prednisolone-equivalent doses (IQR) (details on page 13).

Route of administration	Drug name	Number of courses	Median raw dose in mg/kg (IQR)	Median prednisolone equivalent dose in mg/kg (IQR)
	Methylprednisolone	860	2.0 (2.0-10.0)	2.5 (2.5-12.5)
	Dexamethasone	174	0.6 (0.3-0.7)	3.8 (1.9-4.6)
Intravenous	Not reported	62	-	-
	Prednisolone	51	2.0 (2.0-2.0)	2.0 (2.0-2.0)
	Hydrocortisone	10	4.0 (4.0-4.4)	1.0 (1.0-1.1)
Quel	Prednisolone	22	1.2 (1.0-2.0)	1.2 (1.0-2.0)
Olai	Dexamethasone	6	0.4 (0.2-0.6)	2.8 (1.2-4.0)

#### Table S9B: IVIG doses for primary treatment

Table shows IVIG doses at initiation of primary treatment, for patients with primary treatment of IVIG alone or IVIG and Glucocorticoids. Doses are presented as median raw-dose in g/kg (IQR).

Drug name	Number of courses with reported dose	Median raw dose in g/kg (IQR)
IVIG	1305	2.0 (2.0-2.0)

Table S10: Coefficients for covariate-balancing propensity score multinomial model – Primary outcome: inotropes/ventilation day 2+ or death

		Estimate 95%	
	Estimate	<b>Confidence Interval</b>	Pr(> z )
IVIG: (Intercept)	1.90	[0.91 , 2.89]	0.00017
IVIG: Resource Group: Upper-Mid = FALSE	0.77	[0.65 , 0.89]	<0.0001
IVIG: Resource Group: Lower-Mid/Lower = TRUE	-1.09	[-1.23 , -0.96]	<0.0001
IVIG: Age	0.21	[0.07 , 0.34]	0.0038
IVIG: Weight z-score > 2 = TRUE	-0.25	[-0.37 , -0.12]	0.00011
IVIG: Baseline significant comorbidity = TRUE	-0.08	[-0.22 , 0.05]	0.23
IVIG: Baseline Sex = Male	-0.07	[-0.20 , 0.06]	0.29
IVIG: Complete KD criteria = TRUE	0.13	[0.01 , 0.26]	0.036
IVIG: Baseline requiring inotropes = TRUE	-0.94	[-1.07 , -0.80]	<0.0001
IVIG: Baseline requiring ventilation = TRUE	-0.08	[-0.22 , 0.05]	0.23
IVIG: Baseline peak CRP	-0.05	[-0.17 , 0.08]	0.49
IVIG+Glucocorticoid: (Intercept)	0.61	[-0.49 , 1.72]	0.28
IVIG+Glucocorticoid: Resource Group: Upper-Mid = FALSE	1.05	[0.90 , 1.20]	<0.0001
IVIG+Glucocorticoid: Resource Group: Lower-Mid/Lower = TRUE	-2.45	[-2.61 , -2.30]	<0.0001
IVIG+Glucocorticoid: Age	0.37	[0.17 , 0.56]	0.00027
IVIG+Glucocorticoid: Weight z-score > 2 = TRUE	-0.07	[-0.21 , 0.06]	0.30
IVIG+Glucocorticoid: Baseline significant comorbidity = TRUE	-0.55	[-0.70 , -0.40]	<0.0001
IVIG+Glucocorticoid: Baseline Sex = Male	-0.12	[-0.28 , 0.03]	0.12
IVIG+Glucocorticoid: Complete KD criteria = TRUE	1.01	[0.86 , 1.16]	<0.0001
IVIG+Glucocorticoid: Baseline requiring inotropes = TRUE	-1.04	[-1.20 , -0.88]	<0.0001
IVIG+Glucocorticoid: Baseline requiring ventilation = TRUE	1.64	[1.48 , 1.80]	<0.0001
IVIG+Glucocorticoid: Baseline peak CRP	0.01	[-0.17 , 0.19]	0.93

Table S11: Coefficients for covariate-balancing propensity score multinomial model – Primary outcome: Time-to-improvement in clinical severity scale

	Estimate	Estimate 95% Confidence Interval	Pr(> z )
IVIG: (Intercept)	2.13	[1.15 , 3.11]	<0.0001
IVIG: Resource Group: Upper-Mid = FALSE	0.75	[0.60 , 0.91]	<0.0001
IVIG: Resource Group: Lower-Mid/Lower = TRUE	-1.03	[-1.17 , -0.89]	<0.0001
IVIG: Age	0.23	[0.11 , 0.35]	0.00011
IVIG: Weight z-score > 2 = TRUE	-0.33	[-0.45 , -0.20]	<0.0001
IVIG: Baseline significant comorbidity = TRUE	-0.13	[-0.25 , -0.02]	0.026
IVIG: Baseline Sex = Male	-0.11	[-0.23 , 0.01]	0.067
IVIG: Complete KD criteria = TRUE	0.11	[-0.02 , 0.23]	0.089
IVIG: Baseline requiring inotropes = TRUE	-0.99	[-1.14 , -0.85]	<0.0001
IVIG: Baseline requiring ventilation = TRUE	-0.16	[-0.31 , -0.01]	0.039
IVIG: Baseline peak CRP	-0.07	[-0.20 , 0.07]	0.32
IVIG+Glucocorticoid: (Intercept)	0.59	[-0.52 , 1.71]	0.30
IVIG+Glucocorticoid: Resource Group: Upper-Mid = FALSE	1.10	[0.93 , 1.28]	<0.0001
IVIG+Glucocorticoid: Resource Group: Lower-Mid/Lower = TRUE	-2.39	[-2.57 , -2.21]	<0.0001
IVIG+Glucocorticoid: Age	0.43	[0.29 , 0.57]	<0.0001
IVIG+Glucocorticoid: Weight z-score > 2 = TRUE	-0.15	[-0.30 , 0.01]	0.066
IVIG+Glucocorticoid: Baseline significant comorbidity = TRUE	-0.66	[-0.79 , -0.53]	<0.0001
IVIG+Glucocorticoid: Baseline Sex = Male	-0.15	[-0.28 , -0.03]	0.015
IVIG+Glucocorticoid: Complete KD criteria = TRUE	0.96	[0.80 , 1.11]	<0.0001
IVIG+Glucocorticoid: Baseline requiring inotropes = TRUE	-1.08	[-1.24 , -0.93]	<0.0001
IVIG+Glucocorticoid: Baseline requiring ventilation = TRUE	1.87	[1.69 , 2.04]	<0.0001
IVIG+Glucocorticoid: Baseline peak CRP	0.02	[-0.19 , 0.23]	0.86

Table S12: Coefficients for covariate-balancing propensity score multinomial model – Subgroup meeting WHO MIS-C Criteria: inotropes/ventilation day 2+ or death

	Estimate	Estimate 95% Confidence Interval	Pr(> z )
IVIG: (Intercept)	1.78	[0.76 , 2.81]	0.00065
IVIG: Resource Group: Upper-Mid = FALSE	0.52	[0.40 , 0.64]	<0.0001
IVIG: Resource Group: Lower-Mid/Lower = TRUE	-0.94	[-1.07 , -0.80]	<0.0001
IVIG: Age	0.14	[-0.02 , 0.30]	0.082
IVIG: Weight z-score > 2 = TRUE	-0.15	[-0.28 , -0.01]	0.030
IVIG: Baseline significant comorbidity = TRUE	-0.19	[-0.33 , -0.05]	0.0077
IVIG: Baseline Sex = Male	-0.13	[-0.27 , 0.01]	0.064
IVIG: Complete KD criteria = TRUE	0.16	[0.02 , 0.30]	0.029
IVIG: Baseline requiring inotropes = TRUE	-0.87	[-1.02 , -0.71]	<0.0001
IVIG: Baseline requiring ventilation = TRUE	0.04	[-0.10 , 0.18]	0.54
IVIG: Baseline peak CRP	-0.01	[-0.15 , 0.12]	0.84
IVIG+Glucocorticoid: (Intercept)	0.16	[-0.92 , 1.24]	0.77
IVIG+Glucocorticoid: Resource Group: Upper-Mid = FALSE	0.67	[0.53 , 0.82]	<0.0001
IVIG+Glucocorticoid: Resource Group: Lower-Mid/Lower = TRUE	-2.08	[-2.23 , -1.93]	<0.0001
IVIG+Glucocorticoid: Age	0.29	[0.09 , 0.48]	0.0040
IVIG+Glucocorticoid: Weight z-score > 2 = TRUE	-0.01	[-0.17 , 0.15]	0.90
IVIG+Glucocorticoid: Baseline significant comorbidity = TRUE	-0.68	[-0.84 , -0.52]	<0.0001
IVIG+Glucocorticoid: Baseline Sex = Male	-0.22	[-0.38 , -0.07]	0.0057
IVIG+Glucocorticoid: Complete KD criteria = TRUE	0.99	[0.81 , 1.16]	<0.0001
IVIG+Glucocorticoid: Baseline requiring inotropes = TRUE	-0.88	[-1.06 , -0.69]	<0.0001
IVIG+Glucocorticoid: Baseline requiring ventilation = TRUE	2.04	[1.89 , 2.19]	<0.0001
IVIG+Glucocorticoid: Baseline peak CRP	0.07	[-0.13 , 0.27]	0.50

Table S13: Coefficients for covariate-balancing propensity score multinomial model – Subgroup meeting WHO MIS-C Criteria: Time-to-improvement in clinical severity scale

	Estimate	Estimate 95% Confidence Interval	Pr(>lzl)
IVIG: (Intercept)	2.00	[0.92 , 3.07]	0.00027
IVIG: Resource Group: Upper-Mid = FALSE	0.52	[0.35 , 0.69]	<0.0001
IVIG: Resource Group: Lower-Mid/Lower = TRUE	-0.86	[-1.00 , -0.72]	<0.0001
IVIG: Age	0.17	[0.04 , 0.31]	0.010
IVIG: Weight z-score > 2 = TRUE	-0.22	[-0.35 , -0.09]	0.0011
IVIG: Baseline significant comorbidity = TRUE	-0.22	[-0.36 , -0.08]	0.0024
IVIG: Baseline Sex = Male	-0.17	[-0.30 , -0.03]	0.020
IVIG: Complete KD criteria = TRUE	0.13	[-0.01 , 0.27]	0.059
IVIG: Baseline requiring inotropes = TRUE	-0.88	[-1.03 , -0.74]	<0.0001
IVIG: Baseline requiring ventilation = TRUE	-0.10	[-0.24 , 0.04]	0.18
IVIG: Baseline peak CRP	-0.03	[-0.18 , 0.11]	0.65
IVIG+Glucocorticoid: (Intercept)	0.28	[-0.94 , 1.49]	0.66
IVIG+Glucocorticoid: Resource Group: Upper-Mid = FALSE	0.70	[0.51 , 0.90]	<0.0001
IVIG+Glucocorticoid: Resource Group: Lower-Mid/Lower = TRUE	-2.05	[-2.21 , -1.89]	<0.0001
IVIG+Glucocorticoid: Age	0.31	[0.14 , 0.48]	0.00048
IVIG+Glucocorticoid: Weight z-score > 2 = TRUE	-0.08	[-0.25 , 0.08]	0.33
IVIG+Glucocorticoid: Baseline significant comorbidity = TRUE	-0.59	[-0.75 , -0.43]	<0.0001
IVIG+Glucocorticoid: Baseline Sex = Male	-0.20	[-0.37 , -0.03]	0.018
IVIG+Glucocorticoid: Complete KD criteria = TRUE	0.91	[0.74 , 1.08]	<0.0001
IVIG+Glucocorticoid: Baseline requiring inotropes = TRUE	-0.94	[-1.11 , -0.78]	<0.0001
IVIG+Glucocorticoid: Baseline requiring ventilation = TRUE	1.95	[1.77 , 2.13]	<0.0001
IVIG+Glucocorticoid: Baseline peak CRP	0.06	[-0.13 , 0.25]	0.54

## Table S14: Numbers of patients censoring for time-to-improvement primary outcome analysis

Table showing the number of patients right censored for different reasons during time-to-event analysis for the time-to-improvement primary outcome, separated by primary treatment group.

Baseline ordinal severity score	Reason for censoring	IVIG	Glucocorticoid	IVIG and Glucocorticoid
1) Ventilated and on inotropic support	Unclear when came off either ventilation or inotropes due to missing data	1	1	0
2) Ventilated	Unclear when came off ventilation due to missing data	1	0	1
3) Inotropic support	Unclear when came off inotropes due to missing data	1	1	1
4) Receiving oxygen	Unclear when came off oxygen due to missing data	0	1	0
5) No supportive therapy, last CRP > 50	Unclear when CRP fell below 50 due to missing data	202	129	172
6) No supportive therapy, last CRP < 50	Unclear discharge date	2	1	0

Table S15: Summary of missing data for imputed/interpolated variables Table showing the number of missing values for imputed/interpolated variables (see page 13) of respiratory support, inotropic support, and presence of fever, before and after imputation/interpolation were performed. We present the total number (%) of patients with at least one missing variable, followed by the total number (%) of patient-days with missing values for the entire BATS cohort.

	Imputation/ Interpolation	Respiratory support	Inotropic support	Fever
Patients with at least	Before	41 (2.0%)	30 (1.5%)	551 (27.4%)
one missing value	After	7 (0.3%)	8 (0.4%)	434 (22.1%)
Total days missing value	Before	387 (1.9%)	314 (1.5%)	3322 (16.1%)
	After	87 (0.4%)	123 (0.6%)	3205 (15.6%)

### **Supplementary figures**

Figure S1: World map displaying the location of countries registered to the Best Available Treatment Study and recruiting at least one patient

BATS patients were enrolled from across five continents (Europe, Asia, Africa, North America, and South America). Each yellow dot represents a different country, and the size of the dot is proportional to the number of patients recruited from the country, and may correspond to more than 1 site.



#### Figure S2A: Number of enrolment sites registered per country

Data used in this figure is following exclusions, with countries ordered in reverse by number of enrolment sites



#### Figure S2B: Number of patients enrolled in BATS per country

Data used in this figure is following exclusions, with countries ordered in reverse by number of patients enrolled



### Figure S2C: Number of patients enrolled in BATS by site in each country

Data used in this figure is following exclusions

Arrenting Cite 1	
Argentina Site 2	3
Argentina Site 3 Australia Site 1	5 27
Australia Site 2	21
Austria Site 2	
Belgium Site 1	25
Brazil Site 1	23
Brazil Site 2 Brazil Site 3	22 26
Brazil Site 4	10 71
Canada Site 2	18
Switzerland Site 1 Chile Site 1	47
Chile Site 2	
Colombia Site 1	2 21
Costa Rica Site 1 Germany Site 1	8
Germany Site 2	7
Egypt Site 1	
Spain Site 1 Spain Site 2	5 15
Spain Site 3	
Spain Site 5	8
Spain Site 6 Finland Site 1	
United Kingdom Site 1	2
United Kingdom Site 3	7 40
United Kingdom Site 4	3
United Kingdom Site 6	24
United Kingdom Site 7 United Kingdom Site 8	148
United Kingdom Site 9	33
United Kingdom Site 11	9
United Kingdom Site 12 United Kingdom Site 13	
United Kingdom Site 14	42
United Kingdom Site 16	<b>1</b>
United Kingdom Site 17 Greece Site 1	
Greece Site 2	
Greece Site 3	4 10
Greece Site 5	8
Honduras Site 1	3
Honduras Site 2 Hungary Site 1	
India Site 1	
Italy Site 1	17
Italy Site 2 Italy Site 3	19
Italy Site 4	4 31
Italy Site 6	25
Italy Site 7	
Italy Site 9 Italy Site 10	12
Kenya Site 1	=_2
Mexico Site 2	1 19
Mexico Site 2 Mexico Site 2	92
Mexico Site 4	
Malta Site 1	
Netherlands Site 1	12
Netherlands Site 1 Norway Site 1 Norway Site 2	
Netherlands Site 1 Norway Site 1 Norway Site 2 Norway Site 3	
Netherlands Site 1 Norway Site 1 Norway Site 2 Norway Site 3 Panama Site 1 Panama Site 2	
Netherlands Site 1 Norway Site 2 Norway Site 3 Panama Site 1 Panama Site 1 Panama Site 2 Panama Site 3	
Netherlands Site 1 Norway Site 2 Norway Site 3 Panama Site 1 Panama Site 1 Panama Site 3 Panama Site 4 Panama Site 4 Panama Site 4	
Netherlands Site 1 Norway Site 2 Norway Site 3 Panama Site 1 Panama Site 3 Panama Site 3 Panama Site 4 Panama Site 5 Peru Site 1 Poland Site 1	
Netherlands Site 1 Norway Site 1 Norway Site 2 Norway Site 3 Panama Site 1 Panama Site 2 Panama Site 3 Panama Site 4 Panama Site 5 Peru Site 1 Poland Site 1 Poland Site 2	
Netherlands Site 1 Norway Site 1 Norway Site 2 Norway Site 3 Panama Site 1 Panama Site 3 Panama Site 4 Panama Site 4 Panama Site 4 Poland Site 1 Poland Site 1 Paraguay Site 1 Russia Site 1	
Netherlands Site 1 Norway Site 1 Norway Site 2 Norway Site 3 Panama Site 1 Panama Site 3 Panama Site 4 Panama Site 4 Panama Site 4 Panama Site 1 Poland Site 1 Poland Site 1 Russia Site 1 Sweden Site 1	
Netherlands site 1 Norway Site 2 Norway Site 2 Panama Site 3 Panama Site 3 Panama Site 3 Panama Site 4 Panama Site 5 Peru Site 1 Poland Site 2 Paraguay Site 1 Russia Site 2 Sweden Site 1 Turko Site 1	
Netherlands Side 1 Norway Site 2 Norway Site 2 Panama Site 1 Panama Site 1 Panama Site 3 Panama Site 3 Panama Site 4 Panama Site 4 Poland Site 1 Poland Site 1 Poland Site 1 Sweden Site 1 Sweden Site 1 Turkey Site 1 Turkey Site 2	
Netherlands site 1 Norway Site 2 Norway Site 3 Panama Site 1 Panama Site 1 Panama Site 3 Panama Site 3 Panama Site 4 Panama Site 4 Panaguay Site 1 Russia Site 1 Russia Site 1 Syria Site 1 Turky Site 2 Ukraine Site 1 Ukraine Site 1 Ukraine Site 2	2 12 2 31 2 4 4 5 4 5 4 5 5 71
Netheriands site 1 Norway Site 1 Norway Site 2 Panama Site 2 Panama Site 3 Panama Site 3 Panama Site 3 Panama Site 4 Panama Site 4 Panama Site 4 Panama Site 4 Panama Site 1 Poland Site 2 Provide Site 1 Russia Site 1 Turkey Site 1 Turkey Site 1 Ukraine Site 1 Ukraine Site 1 Ukraine Site 1	12 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Nerthériands site 1 Norway Site 2 Norway Site 2 Panama Site 3 Panama Site 3 Panama Site 3 Panama Site 4 Panama Site 5 Peru Site 1 Poland Site 2 Paraguay Site 1 Russia Site 2 Sweden Site 1 Turkey Site 1 Turkey Site 2 Ukraine Site 2 Ukraine Site 2 United Sitetes Site 3	12
Netheriands site 1 Norway Site 2 Norway Site 3 Panama Site 1 Panama Site 1 Panama Site 3 Panama Site 3 Panama Site 4 Panama Site 4 Panama Site 4 Panama Site 1 Poland Site 1 Poland Site 1 Poland Site 1 Poland Site 1 Russia Site 1 Turkey Site 2 Ukraine Site 1 Ukraine Site 1 Ukraine Site 2 Uhride Sitates Site 3 United Sitates Site 3	$ \begin{array}{c} 12 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 2 \\ 4 \\ 4 \\ 5 \\ 1 \\ 6 \\ 6 \\ 7 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 5 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1$
Netheriands site 1 Norway Site 1 Norway Site 2 Panama Site 2 Panama Site 3 Panama Site 3 Panama Site 3 Panama Site 3 Paraguay Site 1 Poland Site 2 Paraguay Site 1 Russia Site 1 Russia Site 1 Turkey Site 2 Ukraine Site 2 Ukraine Site 2 United Sites Site 3 United Sites Site 3	$ \begin{array}{c} 12 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1$
Nerherlands site 1 Norway Site 2 Norway Site 2 Panama Site 1 Panama Site 2 Panama Site 3 Panama Site 3 Panama Site 4 Panama Site 4 Panama Site 4 Panama Site 4 Panama Site 5 Peru Site 1 Poland Site 2 Panaguay Site 1 Poland Site 2 Panaguay Site 1 Poland Site 2 Panaguay Site 1 Poland Site 2 Panaguay Site 1 Poland Site 2 Varian Site 1 Ukraine Site 2 Ukraine Site 1 United Sites Site 3 United Sites Site 6 United Sites Site 6 United Sites Site 6	$ \begin{array}{c} 12 \\ 2 \\ 2 \\ 3 \\ 4 \\ 5 \\ 5 \\ 2 \\ 4 \\ 5 \\ 5 \\ 2 \\ 2 \\ 4 \\ 5 \\ 5 \\ 2 \\ 2 \\ 2 \\ 2 \\ 2 \\ 2 \\ 2 \\ 2 \\ 2 \\ 2$
Netheriands site 1 Norway Site 2 Norway Site 2 Panama Site 2 Panama Site 2 Panama Site 3 Panama Site 3 Panama Site 3 Panama Site 4 Panama Site 4 Poland Site 1 Poland Site 1 Poland Site 1 Poland Site 1 Poland Site 1 Poland Site 1 Poland Site 2 Site 3 Site 3 Site 3 Ukraine Site 1 Ukraine Site 1 Ukraine Site 1 Ukraine Site 3 United Sitates Site 3 United	$ \begin{array}{c} 12\\ 2\\ 3\\ 3\\ 4\\ 5\\ 6\\ 6\\ 6\\ 6\\ 6\\ 6\\ 6\\ 6\\ 6\\ 6\\ 6\\ 6\\ 6\\$
Netheriands site 1 Norway Site 2 Panama Site 2 Panama Site 2 Panama Site 3 Panama Site 3 Panama Site 3 Panama Site 4 Panama Site 4 Panama Site 4 Panama Site 1 Poland Site 2 Paraguay Site 1 Poland Site 2 Paraguay Site 1 Russia Site 1 Russia Site 1 Syria Site 1 Turky Site 2 Ukraine Site 1 Ukraine Site 2 United Sites Site 3 United Sites Site 3	12
Nerherlands site 1 Norway Site 1 Norway Site 1 Panama Site 1 Panama Site 1 Panama Site 2 Panama Site 3 Panama Site 3 Panama Site 4 Panama Site 4 Panama Site 1 Poland Site 1 Paraguay Site 1 Paraguay Site 1 Russia Site 1 Russia Site 1 Turkey Site 2 Sweden Site 1 Syrka Site 1 Turkey Site 2 Ukraine Site 1 Ukrates Site 3 United States Site 1 United States Site 1 United States Site 1	$ \begin{array}{c} 1 \\ 2 \\ 2 \\ 4 \\ 3 \\ 4 \\ 5 \\ 5 \\ 5 \\ 5 \\ 6 \\ 7 \\ 1 \\ 7 \\ 7 \\ 7 \\ 7 \\ 7 \\ 7 \\ 7 \\ 7 \\ 7 \\ 7$
Netheriands site 1 Norway Site 2 Norway Site 2 Panama Site 1 Panama Site 1 Panama Site 1 Panama Site 3 Panama Site 3 Panama Site 4 Panama Site 4 Panama Site 4 Paraguay Site 1 Poland Site 2 Paraguay Site 1 Poland Site 2 Paraguay Site 1 Turkey Site 1 Turkey Site 2 Ukraine Site 3 Ukraine Site 3 Ukraine Site 3 Ukraine Site 3 United Sitates Site 4 United Sitates Site 1 United Sitates Site 1 United Sitates Site 1 United Sitates Site 1	0 $10$ $10$ $150$



### Figure S3: BATS registrations by month between May 2020 and April 2022 Data used in this figure is following exclusions, and shows total number of registrations by month

#### Figure S4: Comparison of blood results across treatment groups at day 0 (baseline)

Comparison of blood results by first immunomodulator treatment given at day 0. Statistical significance was calculated using the t-test comparing the blood results in each group versus all other groups. Specific blood results were log-transformed prior to comparisons if they appeared significantly skewed and have been plotted on this scale (reported on y-axes). For each blood test we have adjusted p-values for the 10 pairwise comparisons performed using the Bonferroni-Holm procedure. Comparisons are only shown if significant at alpha level 0.05 after adjustment for multiple testing within each blood test. Outliers are defined as any points beyond the whiskers, which are drawn up to 1.5\*IQR away from the upper and lower quartiles.





Figure S5: Comparison of baseline blood results across treatment groups between day 0 and day 2

Comparison of baseline blood results (day 0) by treatment group at day 2. If a patient did not change primary treatment between day 0 and 2, they were classified by that primary treatment (IVIG, IVIG+Glucocorticoid, or glucocorticoid). Patients on monotherapy (with IVIG or Glucocorticoids alone) who have received additional treatments by day 2 have been labelled either "monotherapy to IVIG+G" or "monotherapy added other therapy" depending on if they had received IVIG+G only, or other immunomodulator treatments. Patients on IVIG+G at baseline who have escalated to other therapies by day 2 are labelled "IVIG+G added other therapy". Patients who were on other treatments or combinations

at baseline are labelled "Other therapy from baseline". For each blood result we have used a two-sided t-test to compare each monotherapy arm with the two relevant escalation arms, and also the IVIG+G arm to the IVIG+G escalation group (5 comparisons for each blood test). We have adjusted the 5 obtained p-values using the Bonferroni-Holm procedure. Comparisons are only plotted when significant at alpha level 0.05 after adjustment for multiple testing within each blood test. Outliers are defined as any points beyond the whiskers, which are drawn up to 1.5\*IQR away from the upper and lower quartiles.

Figure S6A: Proportion of patients on inotropes or ventilated at baseline across treatment arms at day 0



## Figure S6B: Proportion of patients on inotropes or ventilated at baseline across treatment groups between day 0 and day 2

Comparison of baseline (day 0) requirement for inotropes or ventilation by treatment group at day 2. If a patient did not change primary treatment between day 0 and 2, they were classified by that primary treatment (IVIG, IVIG+Glucocorticoid, or glucocorticoid). Patients on monotherapy (with IVIG or Glucocorticoids alone) who have received additional treatments by day 2 have been labelled either "switched Rx arm" or "Switched to biologicals" depending on if they had received IVIG+G only, or other immunomodulator treatments. Patients on IVIG+G at baseline who have escalated to other therapies by day 2 are labelled "Switched to biologicals". Patients who were on other treatments or combinations at baseline are labelled "Started on biological".



## Figure S7: Missing components in patients with all but one component of the WHO MIS-C criteria

The 284 patients not meeting the full WHO MIS-C criteria but only missing one criterion were classified by the mandatory WHO-PIMS criteria to assess the most common reasons that they missed full classification. The COVID-19 criterion was defined as evidence of SARS-CoV-2 on RT-PCR, positive antibody result, or likely contact with COVID-19 patients.



## Figure S8: Proportion of patients with clinical features of Kawasaki disease across primary treatment groups up to treatment initiation

Proportion of patients with clinical features of Kawasaki disease and those that met the AHA criteria for complete Kawasaki Disease across primary treatment groups up to treatment initiation.



## Figure S9: Forest plots summarizing point estimates and 95% confidence intervals for secondary outcomes, including planned and post-hoc additional analyses

Displayed values are odds ratios and p-values without correction for multiple hypothesis testing. (A) Glucocorticoids vs IVIG, (B) IVIG+G vs IVIG. Values to the right of the dashed vertical lines indicate the superiority of IVIG alone. \*indicates post-hoc analysis, \*\* indicates planned analysis

### A Glucocorticoids vs IVIG - secondary outcomes

<b>No Improvement</b> No improvement by day-2 *No improvement by day-3		Ţ	<b>1</b>		Raw	<b>P-value</b> 0.39 0.74	<b>OR [95% CI]</b> 1.16 [0.83, 1.63] 1.05 [0.77, 1.43]
<b>Treatment escalation</b> Escalation of primary treatment *Escalation, from day-2 onwards *Escalation, exclude L/LM-IC			-			0.014 0.59 0.0063	0.68 [0.50, 0.93] 0.91 [0.64, 1.29] 0.64 [0.46, 0.88]
<b>Fever</b> Fever from day-2 onwards *Fever from day-3 onwards *Fever from day-2, Complete KD criteria	- -	* 	•'			0.18 0.36 0.60	0.80 [0.58, 1.11] 1.19 [0.82, 1.74] 0.85 [0.47, 1.56]
Deterioration Increase in level of support *Increase in support, exclude L/LM-IC *Increase in support, baseline no support	,					0.45 0.87 0.11	1.18 [0.76, 1.85] 1.04 [0.65, 1.67] 1.50 [0.91, 2.46]
Coronary Artery Aneurysms Coronary Artery Aneurysms (CAA) at discharge *CAA at discharge, no CAA at baseline *CAA at discharge, complete KD criteria *CAA at discharge, exclude complete KD criteria	, , ,		•		-•	0.60 0.40 0.14 0.80	1.31 [0.48, 3.60] 1.66 [0.51, 5.38] 3.51 [0.65, 19.02] 1.15 [0.38, 3.49]
<b>Left-ventricular dysfunction</b> LV-dysfunction (LVD) from day-2 **LVD from day-2, baseline-troponin as covariate *LVD from day-1						0.63 0.32 0.41	1.13 [0.68, 1.89] 1.35 [0.75, 2.44] 1.21 [0.76, 1.94]
*Post-hoc, **Planned					_		
0.1	0.5	1	2	5	10		

# B

### IVIG+G vs IVIG - secondary outcomes

<b>No Improvement</b> No improvement by day-2 *No improvement by day-3		ŢŢ	I.I.		Raw	<b>P-value</b> 0.39 0.40	<b>OR [95% CI]</b> 0.89 [0.67, 1.17] 0.90 [0.69, 1.16]
Treatment escalation         Escalation of primary treatment         *Escalation, from day-2 onwards         *Escalation, exclude L/LM-IC	╼╴ ╼╶╴	-				<0.0001 <0.0001 <0.0001	0.15 [0.11, 0.20] 0.37 [0.27, 0.51] 0.14 [0.11, 0.19]
<b>Fever</b> Fever from day-2 onwards *Fever from day-3 onwards *Fever from day-2, Complete KD criteria	+	╶╋╌╡ ┝─╋ ┲──┤	4			<0.0001 0.068 0.0015	0.50 [0.38, 0.67] 0.74 [0.53, 1.03] 0.48 [0.30, 0.76]
Deterioration Increase in level of support *Increase in support, exclude L/LM-IC *Increase in support, baseline no support		Ттт Т				0.49 0.50 0.79	1.14 [0.78, 1.66] 1.14 [0.78, 1.66] 1.06 [0.68, 1.67]
Coronary Artery Aneurysms Coronary Artery Aneurysms (CAA) at discharge *CAA at discharge, no CAA at baseline *CAA at discharge, complete KD criteria *CAA at discharge, exclude complete KD criteria	+	<u>.</u>	-			0.50 0.85 0.65 0.70	0.78 [0.38, 1.61] 1.10 [0.43, 2.76] 0.66 [0.11, 3.97] 0.83 [0.31, 2.18]
Left-ventricular dysfunction LV-dysfunction (LVD) from day-2 **LVD from day-2, baseline-troponin as covariate *LVD from day-1		ΤτΙ		H		0.67 0.36 0.63	0.92 [0.61, 1.38] 1.22 [0.79, 1.88] 1.10 [0.75, 1.61]
*Post-hoc, **Planned				1	-	_	
0.1		0.5	1	2	5	10	
		Odd	s Ratio	C			

Figure S10: Forest plot summarizing point estimates and 95% confidence intervals for primary and secondary outcomes for planned secondary analysis of IVIG+G versus glucocorticoids alone

Displayed values are odds ratios or average hazard ratios (indicated by \*) for all primary and secondary outcomes for the planned secondary analysis of IVIG+G with glucocorticoids alone. Values to the right of the dashed vertical line indicate the superiority of glucocorticoids alone, except Time-to-improvement primary outcome (indicated by blue arrows), for which values to the left indicate the superiority of glucocorticoids alone. \*\*indicates post-hoc analysis.

### **IVIG+G vs Glucocorticoids alone**

Outcome					P-value	OR/AHR [95% CI]
<b>Primary outcomes</b> Inotropes/Ventilation/Death		F			0.45	1.18 [0.77, 1.80]
Secondary outcomes		•		-	0.012	1.25 [1.05, 1.48]
No improvement by day-2		<b>⊢</b> —∎			0.091	0.76 [0.56, 1.05]
Escalation of primary treatment	⊢_∎(				<0.0001	0.22 [0.16, 0.30]
Fever from day-2 onwards		⊢∎	-		0.0058	0.63 [0.45, 0.88]
Fever from day-3 onwards**					0.011	0.62 [0.43, 0.90]
Increase in level of support		<b></b>	-	-	0.85	0.96 [0.63, 1.46]
CAA at discharge	F	-			0.35	0.60 [0.20, 1.78]
LVD from day-2		· · · · ·	<u>н</u>		0.38	0.81 [0.50, 1.30]
			-	Т		
0.1		0.5	1	2	5	

Odds Ratio / Average Hazard Ratio

## Figure S11: Inverse probability weight distributions and covariate balance plots for first primary outcome: Inotropes/ventilation from day 2 onwards or death

Panel A: covariate balance plots. Red coloured line shows unadjusted absolute standardized mean differences and Kolmogorov-Smirnov statistics; blue coloured line reflects absolute standardized mean differences and Kolmogorov-Smirnov statistics following covariate-balancing propensity score weighting. Panel B: inverse probability of treatment weight (IPTW) distributions for the three treatment groups derived from the covariate-balancing propensity score models, after stabilisation and truncation of large weights at the upper 99<sup>th</sup> quantile. Panels C & D: Distributions of unadjusted (left) and adjusted by IPTW (right) covariates for dichotomous and continuous variables respectively, for samples in the main three primary therapy groups after exclusions and removal of patients with missing baseline covariates.



## Figure S12: Inverse probability weight distributions and covariate balance plots, second primary outcome: Time-to-improvement of ordinal scale of clinical severity

Panel A: covariate balance plots. Red coloured lines show unadjusted absolute standardized mean differences and Kolmogorov-Smirnov statistics; blue coloured line reflects absolute standardized mean differences and Kolmogorov-Smirnov statistics following covariate-balancing propensity score weighting. Panel B: inverse probability of treatment weight (IPTW) distributions for the three treatment groups derived from the covariate-balancing propensity score models, after stabilisation and truncation of large weights at the upper 99<sup>th</sup> quantile.



#### Figure S13: Change in other blood results over time from treatment initiation

Time course plots of additional blood results are plotted as a line and weighted by IPTW as described in supplementary methods. Each blood marker is shown as a percentage of each patient's peak value. For each plot patients are only included if they had blood results available both before and after treatment initiation, and only if their last value up to treatment initiation was abnormal (Abnormal levels defined as: albumin  $\leq 34g/L$ ; NLT  $\geq 3.53$ ; no cut-off used for hemoglobin; platelets  $\geq 450 \times 10^{9}/L$ ; ALT  $\geq 45 IU/L$ ; fibrinogen  $\geq 4.5g/L$ ; proBNP  $\geq 400$ ng/L; D-dimer  $\geq 530$ ng/mL; creatinine  $\geq 40$  micromol/L; LDH  $\geq 170 U/L$ ; lymphocytes  $\leq 1.5 \times 10^{9}/L$ ; neutrophils  $\geq 7 \times 10^{9}/L$ ). Fitted curves are plotted for patients who received IVIG alone, IVIG plus glucocorticoids, and glucocorticoids alone as their primary treatment, using a generalized additive model to fit the curves.



- IVIG - Glucocorticoid - IVIG and Glucocorticoid

## Figure S14: Percentage of the CRP peak value by admission day relative to treatment initiation for three main primary treatments

Percentage of the CRP peak value by admission day relative to treatment initiation for three primary treatments (IVIG, glucocorticoid and IVIG and glucocorticoid combined). CRP was plotted for each patient and at each time point (day) as a line, weighted by covariate-balancing propensity scores (CBPS) and fitted curves plotted for each group using a generalized additive model. For each plot patients are only included if they had blood results available both before and after treatment initiation, and only if their last value up to treatment initiation was abnormal (CRP  $\geq$  8mg/L). Panel A shows the fitted curves for CRP of children receiving primary treatment with IVIG, glucocorticoid or IVIG+Glucocorticoid, younger versus older than 6 years old. Panel B shows the fitted curves for CRP of children receiving primary treatment with IVIG, glucocorticoid or IVIG and glucocorticoid combined. The fitted curves represent children who meet the KD AHA criteria and are younger than 6 years old, and children receiving primary treatment with IVIG, glucocorticoid or IVIG and glucocorticoid combined, and whose treatment remained the same between treatment initiation (day 0) and day 2. The fitted curves represent children who meet the KD AHA criteria and are younger than 6 years old, and children who meet the KD AHA criteria and are younger than 6 years old, and children who meet the KD AHA criteria and are younger than 6 years old, and children who meet the KD AHA criteria and are younger than 6 years old, and children who meet the KD AHA criteria and are younger than 6 years old, and children who meet the KD AHA criteria and are younger than 6 years old, and whose treatment remained the same between treatment initiation (day 0) and day 2. The fitted curves represent children who meet the KD AHA criteria and are younger than 6 years old, and children who do not meet the KD AHA criteria or are older than 6 years old, and children who do not meet the KD AHA criteria and are younger than 6 years old, and children who do not mee



## Figure S15A: Forest plots for additional post-hoc sensitivity analyses for first primary outcome (PO1)

Displayed values are odds ratios, 95% confidence intervals and p-values without correction for multiple hypothesis testing. Results for the full analysis using all covariates is presented for comparison, followed by results repeating the IPTW analysis with individual covariates removed.



## Figure S15B: Forest plots for additional post-hoc sensitivity analyses for second primary outcome (PO2)

Displayed values are average hazard ratios, 95% confidence intervals and p-values without correction for multiple hypothesis testing. Results for the full analysis using all covariates is presented for comparison, followed by results repeating the IPTW analysis with individual covariates removed. We also present results of an additional post-hoc sensitivity analysis exploring the right censoring approach used (page 16).

## PO2 Sensitivity analysis - leave-one-out

### **Glucocorticoids vs IVIG**

Outcome		P-value	AHR [95% CI]
Full analysis		0.054	0.84 [0.70, 1.00]
Time-to-improvement		0.054	0.84 [0.70, 1.00]
Sensitivity analyses - removing covariate:			
Age	<b>⊢ – – – – – – – – – –</b>	0.076	0.85 [0.71, 1.02]
CRP	<b>⊢</b> ∎i	0.068	0.85 [0.72, 1.01]
Requiring inotropes	<b>⊢</b>	0.70	0.96 [0.81, 1.16]
Requiring ventilation	<b>⊢</b>	0.17	0.89 [0.75, 1.05]
Sex	⊢ <b>−−−</b> ↓	0.057	0.84 [0.70, 1.01]
Significant comorbidities	<b>⊢</b> 1	0.058	0.84 [0.70, 1.01]
Complete KD	<b>⊢ ■ ∃</b>	0.067	0.85 [0.72, 1.01]
Resource group	⊢ <b></b>	0.00020	0.73 [0.61, 0.86]
Weight z-score > 2	<b>⊢</b> • • • •	0.060	0.84 [0.70, 1.01]
Other sensitivity analyses			
CRP improvement not right-censored	<b>⊢</b>	0.19	0.90 [0.77, 1.05]

### IVIG+G vs IVIG

Outcome			P-value	AHR [95% CI]
<b>Full analysis</b> Time-to-improvement		⊢	0.54	1.04 [0.91, 1.20]
Sensitivity analyses - remov Age CRP Requiring inotropes Requiring ventilation Sex Significant comorbidities Complete KD Resource group Weight z-score > 2	ing covariate:		0.41 0.13 0.020 0.61 0.54 0.57 0.54 0.92 0.53	$\begin{array}{c} 1.06 \; [0.92,  1.22] \\ 1.11 \; [0.97,  1.28] \\ 1.18 \; [1.03,  1.35] \\ 1.04 \; [0.90,  1.19] \\ 1.05 \; [0.91,  1.20] \\ 1.04 \; [0.90,  1.20] \\ 1.04 \; [0.91,  1.20] \\ 0.99 \; [0.87,  1.14] \\ 1.05 \; [0.91,  1.20] \end{array}$
Other sensitivity analyses CRP improvement not right-ce	nsored	<b>⊢-⊞-</b> -1	0.29	1.07 [0.94, 1.21]
			-1	
0.25	0.5	1	2	4
		Average Hazard Ratio		

## Figure S16: Covariate balance plots for matched analysis of first and second primary outcomes

Covariate balance plots for sensitivity analysis using propensity matched methods to estimate treatment effect on the first and second primary outcomes (full details on page 20). Red coloured lines show unadjusted absolute standardized mean differences; blue coloured lines show absolute standardized mean differences following propensity score matching. Panel A: first primary outcome, Glucocorticoids vs IVIG; panel B: second primary outcome, Glucocorticoids vs IVIG; panel D: second primary outcome, IVIG and Glucocorticoids vs IVIG; panel D: second primary outcome, IVIG and Glucocorticoids vs IVIG; panel D: second primary outcome, IVIG and Glucocorticoids vs IVIG; panel D: second primary outcome, IVIG and Glucocorticoids vs IVIG; panel D: second primary outcome, IVIG and Glucocorticoids vs IVIG; panel D: second primary outcome, IVIG and Glucocorticoids vs IVIG; panel D: second primary outcome, IVIG and Glucocorticoids vs IVIG; panel D: second primary outcome, IVIG and Glucocorticoids vs IVIG; panel D: second primary outcome, IVIG and Glucocorticoids vs IVIG; panel D: second primary outcome, IVIG and Glucocorticoids vs IVIG; panel D: second primary outcome, IVIG and Glucocorticoids vs IVIG; panel D: second primary outcome, IVIG and Glucocorticoids vs IVIG; panel D: second primary outcome, IVIG and Glucocorticoids vs IVIG; panel D: second primary outcome, IVIG and Glucocorticoids vs IVIG; panel D: second primary outcome, IVIG and Glucocorticoids vs IVIG; panel D: second primary outcome, IVIG and Glucocorticoids vs IVIG; panel D: second primary outcome, IVIG and Glucocorticoids vs IVIG; panel D: second primary outcome, IVIG and Glucocorticoids vs IVIG; panel D: second primary outcome, IVIG and Glucocorticoids vs IVIG; panel D: second primary outcome, IVIG and Glucocorticoids vs IVIG; panel D: second primary outcome, IVIG and Glucocorticoids vs IVIG; panel D: second primary outcome, IVIG and Glucocorticoids vs IVIG; panel D: second primary outcome, IVIG and Glucocorticoids vs IVIG; panel D: second primary outcome, IV







### Appendices

### Appendix A – Targeted coronary aneurysm questionnaire

To provide minimum required data to determine longer-term coronary artery aneurysm outcomes, the following questionnaire was sent to all recruiting sites for patients who were reported to have coronary artery aneurysms still present on their final echocardiogram entered onto the REDCap database. Recruiting sites were contacted a minimum of three times to minimise loss to follow-up.

- 1. Did coronary artery aneurysms resolve during follow-up?
- 2. What was the date of the last follow-up echocardiogram showing Coronary Artery Aneurysm(s), and if recorded what was the maximal z-score during this echocardiogram?
- 3. What was the date of the first follow-up echocardiogram not showing Coronary Aneurysm(s), and if recorded what was the maximal z-score during this echocardiogram?

### Appendix B – Sample-size calculations

### Primary outcome 1 - Inotropic support or ventilation or death (dichotomous)

Assumptions:

- 1. 30% of patients in the control arm will have an outcome (estimated from the weighted numbers seen in previous analysis)
- 2. Aim to detect a 30% relative decrease in outcomes in the experimental arm (clinically appreciable improvement)
- 3. Aim for power of 0.8
- 4. Aim for type-1 error rate of 0.013 this equates to global type-1 error rate of 0.05 across four comparisons (2 treatment comparisons, 2 primary outcomes)
- 5. Using a two-sided test
- 6. Assume equal proportion of patients in each arm

Under these assumptions, we would require **516 patients** in each group. If we assume instead that there are 600 patients in our largest group, we will require 452 **patients** in the smaller group to have the above power to detect the assumed effect size above.

#### Varying effect size

Below is a table demonstrating how changing effect size (relative decrease) alters the number of patients needed in each arm, when assuming equal proportions.

Relative Decrease	Ν
20%	1208
25%	758
30%	516
35%	370

### Primary outcome 2 - Time to improvement (continuous)

Assumptions:

- 1. 90% of patients in both arms will have an outcome (estimated from the numbers seen in previous analysis)
- 2. Aim to detect a postulated hazard ratio of 0.8 between treatment arms (clinically appreciable improvement)
- 3. Aim for power of 0.8
- 4. Aim for type-1 error rate of 0.013 this equates to global type-1 error rate of 0.05 across four comparisons
- 5. Assume equal proportion of patients in each arm

Under these assumptions, using the Cox Proportional-Hazards Model we would require **498 patients** in each group. If we assume instead that there are 50% more patients in our largest group, we will require **595 patients** in the larger group and **397 patients** in the smaller group to have the above power to detect the assumed effect size above.

Notes: These calculations have been performed using the packages pwr<sup>17</sup> and powerSurvEpi.<sup>18</sup>

### Appendix C – List of R packages used for analysis

Packages used for processing, analysis or visualisation are listed below, in no particular order. References are also included.

- ggplot2<sup>9</sup>
- WeightIt<sup>11</sup>
- survey<sup>12</sup>
- EValue<sup>16</sup>
- Matchlt<sup>15</sup>
- CBPS<sup>19</sup>
- cobalt<sup>20</sup>
- coxphw<sup>21</sup>
- jskm<sup>22</sup>
- Hmisc<sup>23</sup>
- vistime<sup>24</sup>
- stringi<sup>25</sup>
- tidyverse<sup>26</sup>
- magrittr<sup>27</sup>
- metafor<sup>28</sup>
- spatstat<sup>29</sup>
- ggpubr<sup>30</sup>
- networkD3<sup>31</sup>
- survival<sup>32</sup>
- viridis<sup>33</sup>

### Appendix D – Key fields required for full analysis

Field category	Fields
Admission	Admission date; treatments received prior to admission at recruiting hospital
Discharge	Date of discharge or death; place of discharge
Demographics	Age (in years & months); weight; sex-at- birth
Clinical history	Presenting symptoms; presence of comorbidities
Therapy	Start dates of immunomodulator therapies; steroid name, dose, and route
Daily level-of-care & support	Level-of-care; supportive therapies, including oxygen, ventilation, inotropes, renal replacement therapy and Extracorporeal membrane oxygenation
Investigations	CRP & other blood results by day; echocardiogram results, including presence of coronary artery aneurysms

### References

1 McArdle A, Vito O, Patel H, et al. Treatment of Multisystem Inflammatory Syndrome in Children. *N Engl J Med.* 2021;**385:**11-22

2 R Core Team (2022). R: A language and environment for statistical computing. R Foundation for Statistical Computing, Vienna, Austria. URL <u>https://www.R-project.org/</u>

3 Royal College of Paediatrics and Child Health (RCPCH). Paediatric multisystem inflammatory syndrome temporally associated with COVID-19 (PIMS) - guidance for clinicians. 2020. https://www.rcpch.ac.uk/resources/paediatric-multisystem-inflammatory-syndrome-temporally-associated-covid-19-pims-guidance. Date accessed: December 10, 2022

4 World Health Organization. Multisystem inflammatory syndrome in children and adolescents temporally related to COVID-19. Scientific brief. May 2020. https://www.who.int/publications/i/item/multisystem-inflammatory-syndrome-in-children-and-adolescents-with-covid-19. Date accessed: December 10, 2022

5 Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC). Information for healthcare providers about multisystem inflammatory syndrome in children (MIS-C) <u>https://www.cdc.gov/mis-c/hcp/</u>. Date accessed: July 28, 2022

6 National Institute for Health and Care Excellence (NICE). Equivalent anti-inflammatory doses of oral corticosteroids. June 2020. <u>https://cks.nice.org.uk/topics/corticosteroids-oral/background-information/equivalent-anti-inflammatory-doses/</u>. Date accessed: December 10, 2022

7 Royal College of Paediatrics and Child Health (RCPCH) growth API. <u>https://www.rcpch.ac.uk/resources/growth-charts/digital</u>. Date accessed: December 10, 2022

8 McCrindle BW, Rowley AH, Newburger JW, et al. Diagnosis, Treatment, and Long-Term Management of Kawasaki Disease: A Scientific Statement for Health Professionals From the American Heart Association. *Circulation*. 2017;**135(17)**:e927–99.

9 Wickham H. ggplot2: Elegant Graphics for Data Analysis. *Springer-Verlag New York.* 2016.

10 Imai K, Ratkovic M. Covariate balancing propensity score. *J R Stat Soc Ser B Stat Methodol.* 2014;**76:**243–263

11 Greifer N (2021). Weightlt: Weighting for Covariate Balance in Observational Studies. R package version 0.12.0. URL: <u>https://CRAN.R-project.org/package=Weightlt</u>

12 Lumley T (2020). survey: analysis of complex survey samples. R package version 4.0. URL: http://r-survey.r-forge.r-project.org/survey

13 Schemper M, Wakounig S, Heinze G. The estimation of average hazard ratios by weighted Cox regression. *Stat Med.* 2009;**28**:2473–2489

14 Grambsch PM, Therneau TM. Proportional hazards tests and diagnostics based on weighted residuals. *Biometrika*. 1994;**81(3):**515-526

15 Daniel EH, Kosuke I, Gary K, Elizabeth AS. Matchlt: Nonparametric Preprocessing for Parametric Causal Inference. *Journal of Statistical Software*. 2011;**42(8):**1-28

16 VanderWeele TJ, Ding P. Sensitivity Analysis in Observational Research: Introducing the E-Value. *Ann Intern Med.* 2017;**167:**268–274

17 Champely S (2020). pwr: Basic Functions for Power Analysis. R package version 1.3-0. URL: https://CRAN.R-project.org/package=pwr

18 Qiu W, Chavarro J, Lazarus R, Rosner B, Ma J (2021). powerSurvEpi: Power and Sample Size Calculation for Survival Analysis of Epidemiological Studies. R package version 0.1.3. URL: <u>https://CRAN.R-project.org/package=powerSurvEpi</u>

19 Fong C, Ratkovic M, Imai K (2022). CBPS: Covariate Balancing Propensity Score. R package version 0.23. URL: <u>https://CRAN.R-project.org/package=CBPS</u>
20 Greifer N (2022). cobalt: Covariate Balance Tables and Plots. R package version 4.3.2. URL: https://CRAN.R-project.org/package=cobalt

21 Dunkler D, Ploner M, Schemper M, Heinze G. "Weighted Cox Regression Using the R Package coxphw." *Journal of Statistical Software* 2018;**84(2):**1-26.

22 Kim J (2021). jskm: Kaplan-Meier Plot with 'ggplot2'. R package version 0.4.3. URL: https://CRAN.R-project.org/package=jskm

23 Harrell Jr FE (2022). Hmisc: Harrell Miscellaneous. R package version 4.7-0. URL: https://CRAN.R-project.org/package=Hmisc

24 Raabe S (2021). vistime: Pretty Timelines in R. R package version 1.2.1. URL: https://CRAN.R-project.org/package=vistime

25 Gagolewski M (2021). stringi: Fast and portable character string processing in R. R package version 1.7.6. URL: <u>https://stringi.gagolewski.com/</u>

Wickham H, Averick M, Bryan J et al. Welcome to the tidyverse. *Journal of Open-Source Software*. 2019;**4(43):**1686

27 Bache SM, Wickham H (2022). magrittr: A Forward-Pipe Operator for R. R package version 2.0.3. URL: <u>https://CRAN.R-project.org/package=magrittr</u>

Viechtbauer W. Conducting meta-analyses in R with the metafor package. *Journal of Statistical Software*. 2010;**36(3):**1-48

29 Baddeley A, Rubak E, Turner R. Spatial Point Patterns: Methodology and Applications with R. *London: Chapman and Hall/CRC Press* 2015. URL: <u>https://www.routledge.com/Spatial-Point-</u> <u>Patterns-Methodology-and-Applications-with-R/Baddeley-Rubak-Turner/9781482210200/</u>

30 Kassambara A (2020). ggpubr: 'ggplot2' Based Publication Ready Plots. R package version 0.4.0. URL: <u>https://CRAN.R-project.org/package=ggpubr</u>

Allaire JJ, Gandrud C, Russell K, Yetman CJ (2017). networkD3: D3 JavaScript Network Graphs from R. R package version 0.4. URL: <u>https://CRAN.R-project.org/package=networkD3</u>

32 Therneau TM (2022). A Package for Survival Analysis in R; 2022. R package version 3.3-1. URL: <u>https://CRAN.Rproject.org/package=survival</u>

33 Garnier, Simon, Ross, et al. viridis – Colorblind Friendly Color Maps for R; 2021. R package version 0.6.2. URL: <u>https://sjmgarnier.github.io/viridis/</u>